
School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Nov 02 2023 (6:00 p.m. - immediately following the School Board Organization Meeting)

Student Showcase (Wilkinson Junior High Band Ensemble, Kristen Richard, Sponsor)

Invocation (Given at preceding Organization meeting)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Art in the Capitol Winner

2. Recognition of Clay High School Class 5A Division Recipients of the Floyd E. Lay Sunshine Cup All-Sports Award

3. Recognition of Coaches of the Year

4. Recognition of the 2023-2024 Clay County Principal of the Year

5. Recognition of the 2023-2024 Clay County Assistant Principal of the Year

Presenters

School Showcase (Wilkinson Junior High, Nate Warmouth, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

6. C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting on September 14, 2023; School Board Workshop on September 26,
2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on October 5, 2023

2023 Sep 14 Special Mtg (Budget).pdf

2023 Sep 26 Workshop.pdf

2023 Oct 5 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2023 Oct 5 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

7. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 11022023.pdf

Page 1 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52567
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52597
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52598
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52609
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52610
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52565
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52565
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-sep-14-special-mtg-budget.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-sep-26-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-oct-5-regular-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52600
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-11022023.pdf


8. C3 - Proclamation 24-07 to Establish November 13 - 17, 2023 as National Education Week and November 15, 2023 as
Educational Support Professionals' Day

Proclamation 24-07 National Education Week - Google Docs.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

9. C4 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

WES_Out of State FT.pdf

10. C5 - Amendment 1 to Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and PACE Center for Girls - Clay

240052 PACE Amd 1.pdf

11. C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

November 2023 Board Backup.pdf

12. C7 - 2023-2024 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar

K12UniformAssessmentCalendar2324.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

13. C8 -  Proclamation #24-06 to Establish School Psychologist Week November 6-10, 2023

School Psychologist Proclamation 2023 .pdf

14. C9 - Clay County District Schools & the University of Central Florida

Clay County District Schools & the University of Central Florida SW Internship Agreement.pdf

Business Affairs

15. C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

11.02.23 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.xlsx.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

16. C11 - Monthly Financial Reports for September, 2023

August 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

July 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

September 2023 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

September 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent from $50K to $100K.pdf

17. C12 - Budget Amendment Report for September 30, 2023

23-24 Budget Amendments September 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

18. C13 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT OCTOBER, 2023

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT OCTOBER, 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

Page 2 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52599
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52599
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-24-07-national-education-week-google-docs.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52583
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wes_out-of-state-ft.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52592
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240052-pace-amd-1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52596
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2023-board-backup_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52590
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/k12uniformassessmentcalendar2324.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52585
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-psychologist-proclamation-2023-1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52572
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-county-district-schools-the-university-of-central-florida-sw-internship-agreement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52608
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/110223-23-24-allocation-summaryxlsx.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52595
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/august-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-from-50k-to-100k.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52594
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-budget-amendments-september-2023.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52582
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-october-2023.pdf


19. C14 - BID Renewal

Operations-Facilities

20. C15 - Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Window Replacement (Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4)

Change Order #1 OPJ Window Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

21. C16 - Purchase Agreement for Sale of Two (2) Portable Classrooms and Two (2) Sets of Ramps and Stairs at Paterson
Elementary School

LOI County Portable Donation 11.2.23.pdf

Purchase Agreement & Resolution for Portable Classrooms & Ramps & Steps 11.2.23.pdf

Resolution & Purchase Agreement for Sale of Portables & Ramps & Steps Contract Review Approval.pdf

22. C17 - Interlocal Agreement to Sell Low-Priced Diesel Fuel to the Clay County Board of County Commissioners for
Use of Fire and Rescue Vehicles in the Keystone Heights Area

Interlocal Agreement CCSB 2023-2024 Diesel Fuel.pdf

Interlocal Agreement for Low-Priced Fuel Contract Review Approval.pdf

23. C18 - Resolution and Option Contract Sale Agreement for .16 Acres at Montclair Elementary School

MCE Property Resolution.Option Contract.Survey #1.pdf

MCE Property Resolution.Option Contract.Survey #2.pdf

Resolution & Option Contract for MCE Property Contract Review Approval.pdf

24. C19 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 11.2.23

25. C20 - Substantial Completion of Lakeside Junior High School Restroom Renovations

Substantial Completion LSJ Restroom Renovation.pdf

26. C21 - Final Completion of Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

Final Completion OPJ Restroom Renovation.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

School Board Attorney

27. D1 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights, Notification
and Student Welfare)

Legal Adv Revisions to SB Policy 1.15 Parental Rights.pdf

2023.08.28 Section 1.15 proposed changes.pdf

Human Resources

Page 3 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52593
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52584
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-opj-window-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52587
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52587
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/loi-county-portable-donation-11223.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/purchase-agreement-resolution-for-portable-classrooms-ramps-steps-11223.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/resolution-purchase-agreement-for-sale-of-portables-ramps-steps-contract-review-approval.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52588
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52588
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-ccsb-2023-2024-diesel-fuel.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-for-low-priced-fuel-contract-review-approval.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52589
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mce-property-resolutionoption-contractsurvey-1_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mce-property-resolutionoption-contractsurvey-2_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/resolution-option-contract-for-mce-property-contract-review-approval.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52591
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-11223.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52604
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/substantial-completion-lsj-restroom-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52605
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/final-completion-opj-restroom-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52566
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52566
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-revisions-to-sb-policy-115-parental-rights.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20230828-section-115-proposed-changes.pdf


28. D2 - Human Resources Special Action A

29. D3 - Human Resources Special Action B

30. D4 - Human Resources Special Action C

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52601
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52602
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52603


School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Art in the Capitol Winner

Description
Recognition and presentation of certificate to ??????? of Art in the Capitol contest.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Clay High School Class 5A Division Recipients of the Floyd E. Lay Sunshine Cup All-Sports Award

Description
The Floyd E. Lay Sunshine Cup All-Sports Awards are presented by the Florida High School Athletic Association.  Points are
awarded to a school based on its finish in the FHSAA State Series competition in each sport in the classification in which it has
been assigned to compete.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
John Stilianou, Coordinator of Athletics, john.stilianou@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Coaches of the Year

Description
Recognition of Lantz Lowery (Keystone Heights High School) and Ashley Houston (Middleburg High School) as Coaches of the
Year.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
John Stilianou, Coordinator of District Athletics, john.stilianou@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of the 2023-2024 Clay County Principal of the Year

Description
Superintendent Broskie will recognize Wilnitra Dixon from Oakleaf Junior High for being selected as Principal of the Year. 

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of the 2023-2024 Clay County Assistant Principal of the Year

Description
Superintendent Broskie will recognize Hope Davis from Lakeside Junior High for being selected as Clay County's Assistant
Principal of the Year.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 9 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting on September 14, 2023; School Board Workshop on September 26, 2023;
Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on October 5, 2023

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2023 Sep 14 Special Mtg (Budget).pdf

2023 Sep 26 Workshop.pdf

2023 Oct 5 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2023 Oct 5 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 10 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-sep-14-special-mtg-budget.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-sep-26-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-oct-5-regular-mtg.pdf


Date: Sep 14 2023 (5:05 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

September 14, 2023 - Special Meeting (Public Hearing on the Budget)

Invocation  (None)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley

Gilhousen, District 5; and Chief Academic O�cer Roger Dailey (substituting for Superintendent David S. Broskie))

Agenda Items

1. Review the 2023-2024 Final Millage, Rolled-Back Rate Calculation, and the 2023-2024 Budget (All Funds)

Summary Budget Final Hearing.pdf

Final EFP Presentation Capital Rev Sources - 9-14-2023.pdf

Minutes:

Prior to hearing the agenda items, Chair Gilhousen read a statement into the record noting revisions to the agenda:

"Final adjustments to the prior year's (2022-2023) expenditures have impacted the 2023-2024 proposed �nal budget and

necessitated a need to revise some of the items and attachments on the agenda.  Revisions are as follows:

Item#1 - Review the 2023-2024 Final Millage, Rolled-Back Rate Calculation and the 2023-2024 Budget (All Funds) - item

re�ects corrected total under "�nancial impact"

Item #2 - Public Hearing for Comments on the 2023-2024 Budget and Millages - item re�ects corrected total under

"�nancial impact"

Item #8 - Adopt the Budget (All Funds) for 2023-2024 - item re�ects corrected total under 'recommendations" and

attachments (Budget Summary Report and ESE 139) have been revised

Item #10 - Resolution 24-04 Adopting the 2023-2024 Final Budget - item values in table under "description: corrected

and attachment (Resolution 24-04) has been revised to re�ect correct total

Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business A�airs, used the attached visual presentation to review the rolled-

back rate calculation, �nal proposed millages, and the 2023-2024 budget for all funds.  The total millage levy is 6.404 and the

total budget for all funds is $596,998,307.  A tax increase was advertised because the millage rate to be levied exceeds the

rolled-back rate by 12.10 percent. 

Mrs. Gilhousen noted that the local percentages are signi�cantly higher than what is re�ected in previous years and that it

is important for the public to understand that, as the local tax base grows, the state's contribution decreases, and the �nancial

burden of education falls more greatly on local residents.

Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, and Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, used

the attached visual presentation to highlight project changes subsequent to the tentative Educational Facilities Plan, projected

new revenue, and district capital outlay expenditures.  Board members' questions included how priorities are determined for

funding and, speci�cally, how needed playground repairs may be addressed.

Page 11 of 344

DRAFT



2. Public Hearing for Comments on the 2023-2024 Budget and Millages

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak to the item, the public hearing was closed.

3. Adopt the 2023-2024 Required Local E�ort Millage Levy

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed required local e�ort mill levy of 3.156 with a

proposed amount to be raised of $60,520,294. The RLE millage includes basic RLE of 3.151 and a prior period adjustment

millage of .005

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Erin Skipper

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

4. Adopt the 2023-2024 Basic Discretionary Operating Mill Levy

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed base discretionary millage of .748 with a

proposed amount to be raised of $14,343,847.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Erin Skipper

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

5. Adopt the 2023-2024 Local Capital Improvement Fund Millage Levy

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed capital outlay millage of 1.500 with a proposed

amount to be raised of $28,764,398.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Beth Clark

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Page 12 of 344

DRAFT



6. Adopt the 2023-2024 Additional Voted Operating Millage Levy

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed voted millage of 1.00 with a proposed amount

to be raised of $19,176,265.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

7. Adopt the 2023-2024 Total Millage Levy

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed total millage which will equal 6.404 with a total

amount to be raised of $122,804.804. The total millage rate to be levied is more than the roll-back rate by 12.10 percent.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Erin Skipper

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

8. Adopt the Budget (All Funds) for 2023-2024

ESE 139.pdf

Summary Budget Final Hearing.pdf

Motion

Motion that the Clay County School Board adopt the �nal budget for the 2023-2024 school year as follows: General Operating

in the amount of $417,769,509; Special Revenue Budget in the amount of $84,370,919; Debt Service Budget in the amount of

$7,541,680; Capital Outlay budget in the amount of $96,627,335, for a total Final Budget of $60

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Erin Skipper

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

9. Resolution 24-03 Florida Department of Education Resolution Determining Revenues and Millages Levied

Page 13 of 344

DRAFT



Resolution 24-03 ESE524.pdf

Motion

Motion to Approve Resolution #24-03 determining the 2023-2024 Tentative Revenues and Millages levied for �scal year 2023-

2024

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Beth Clark

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

10. Resolution 24-04 Adopting the 2023-2024 Final Budget

Resolution 24-04.pdf

Motion

Motion to Approve Resolution #24-04 adopting the Final 2023-2024 Budget

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

11. Final 2023/2024 – 2027/2028 Educational Facilities Plan

EFP 2023-2028 FINAL 9.14.23.pdf

Motion

Motion to Approve �nal 2023/2024 - 2027/2028 Educational Facilities Plan

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Erin Skipper

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Presentations from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

Page 14 of 344

DRAFT



School Board Comments  (None)

Adjournment  (5:45 p.m.)

Superintendent School Board Chair

Page 15 of 344

DRAFT



Date: Sep 26 2023 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street & Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

September 26, 2023 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on October 5, 2023

October-5-2023-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet (3).pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions:

Recognize Schools' Excellence for Kids Heart Challenge, American Heart Association - no discussion;

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop on August 29, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on September
7, 2023 - no discussion;
C2 School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to attend FSBA/FADSS 78th Annual Joint Conference -
no discussion;
C3 Google Workspace for Education Renewal - no discussion;
C4 Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Adopt Revisions to School Board Policy 7.00 (Information Services) -
revisions to this policy are needed due to recent legislation addressing new policy language related to data ownership, records
and email retention, data privacy, and social media usage; brief discussion of "business use" in data ownership, clarified by
Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, that this language tracks with statute language;
C5 Personnel Consent Agenda - Mrs. Hanson requested information re redesignated positions; Superintendent Broskie
advised this can occur when there is an increase or decrease in responsibility of an allocated position; Mrs. Hanson has
requested additional information from Dr. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, in order to understand the
impact of these changes on the budget; additional discussion included the difficulty of hiring for skilled positions on the current
salary tables; Mrs. Skipper noted the need to be competetive with other counties with employee pay and retention; Mrs.
Hanson noted additional responsibilities of classroom teachers and is concerned about the retention of master teachers and
new teachers; Mr. Broskie noted historical salaries and stated instructional position salaries have been the highest in the last
three years and indicated the board must carefully consider how available funding is applied to compensation; Mrs. Hanson
suggested the need to consider freezing salaries and redesignating positions due to current financial circumstances;
C6 Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and St. Leo University - this program is "para to pro"
and serves to grow teachers from paraprofessional positions; 
C7 School Improvement Plan Approval - Mr. Broskie shared the steps involved in the creation of the plan presented; 
C8 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;
C9 2023-24 Early College Program (formerly Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay County and
District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College - brief discussion of Bright Futures funding for students graduating
high school with an AA degree and the need to provide clarifying information to parents; there will be a Parents Academy with
breakout sessions to share information with parents;
C10 Proclamation for Red Ribbon Week - no discussion; 
C11 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024 - no discussion;
C12 Advantage Package for Clinical Rules in Pharmacy Program - Hannah Carter, Account Executive, The Bailey Group,
attended the meeting via telephonic conferencing and reviewed the district's current pharmacy program for
employees; recommended increasing the Clinical Rules Program Package from the Limited Package to the Advantage

P k tili i th th (St Th P i A th i ti d D Q tit M t) b tPage 16 of 344

DRAFT



Package, utilizing the same three programs (Step Therapy, Prior Authorization, and Drug Quantity Management), but
expanding the drug list; changes would be effective 1/1/2024 and align with the regularly scheduled Rx formulary change;
C13 Contract Services for Stop Loss Insurance - Hannah Carter, Account Executive, The Bailey Group, recommended
renewing with Sun Life for stop loss coverage for the 10/1/2023 plan year;
C14 Implementing SaveOnSP Program in Pharmacy Program - Hannah Carter, Account Executive, The Bailey Group,
recommended adding the SaveOnSP program to maximize copay assistance for certain specialty medications that meet the
program requirements; eligible specialty medications would reduce member cost; the plan would be implemented to be
effective 1/1/2024 to align with the regularly scheduled Rx formulary change; board members requested additional information
re the listed eligible specialty medications; 
C15 Deletion of Certain Items Report September, 2023 - no discussion;
C16 Bid/Contract Renewal - no discussion;
C17 Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing for Amendments to School Board Policy 1.14, Sales Surtax Citizens Advisory
Committee - the purpose of this committee was reviewed; proposed policy language revisions are to ensure a quorum to be
able to take action at meetings; revisions are to move from a strict rule requiring one (1) member from each district to a simple
majority, allowing an alternate to vote in the absence of a district's regular member; 
C18 Prequalification of Contractors - no discussion;
C19 Change Order #8 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement - brief discussion about needed stadium
repairs at Green Cove Springs Junior High;
C20 Change Order #2 for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations - no discussion;
C21 Safety & Security; Emergency Communications-Contract Award for Clay High School - Bryce Ellis, Assistant
Superintendent of Operations introduced Spencer Anderson, Regional Sales Director, Audio Enhancement, who provided an
audio/visual presentation re the proposed product for campus safety and enhanced classroom audio instruction; the product
will be a one-time cost to include maintenance, will utilize voter-approved safety and security mill funding, and will include an
intercom paging and bell solution for the entire campus; SAFE system will send silent alerts to front office and first responders
to address emergent situations; system integrates with current and planned access controls;
C22 Safety & Security; Emergency Communications-Contract Award for Keystone Heights High School - see comments for
C21
C23 Safety & Security; Emergency Communications-Contract Award for Middleburg High School - see comments for C21
C24 Safety & Security; Emergency Communications-Contract Award for Ridgeview High School - see comments for C21
C25 Safety & Security; Emergency Communications-Contract Award for Fleming Island High School - see comments for C21

*A recess was taken from 11:10 a.m. to 11:22 a.m.

C26 Substantial and Final Completion of Ridgeview High School Roof Repair/Replacement Building 2 - no discussion;
C27 Final Completion of Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations - no discussion;
C28 Final Completion of Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, &3 Kitchen/Cafeteria
Renovations - no discussion;
C29 County-Wide Professional Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Contract Award - no discussion;
C30 Change Order #5 (Reconciliation of GMP) for Spring Park Elementary School - Mr. Broskie noted a savings of $573,000
as this project concludes; 
C31 Final Completion of Spring Park Elementary School - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;

2. Discussion of Timeline for Review of School Board Policies

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla Indicated that policies should be reviewed with regularity and it may be helpful for the board to review with the
superintendent or his designee so board members can learn what the policies are and what revisions may be required, noting that
statute changes continuously drive the revisions of applicable policies.  She noted that NEOLA does updates on policies for all
registered clients, indicating that NEOLA has been considered previously but not retained due to cost.

Mr. Blocker noted that staff as well as attorneys should be involved in policy revisions, and he has recommended to the
superintendent that this process needs to be done in an organized, disciplined way in order to avoid confusion and frustration among
staff.  He shared that NEOLA does conduct regular reviews and proposed a continuous review of all policies, to be done in a two-year
cycle, with each department bringing recommended and statutory changes to the board for discussion so that all recommendations
can be crafted in a legally sufficient, defensible way.  As changes occur in legislature and federal case law, flexibility and the need to
adjust will be required.  Mr. Broskie will meet with staff to establish a timeline to direct the workflow for regular policy review, and
Mr. Blocker will be responsible for addressing new legislation requiring action.

Mrs. Hanson noted that her biggest concern is not having sufficient conversation about stakeholder input on matters such as cell
phones and discipline.

The current cost of NEOLA is $142,000., and the board is not interested in incurring that expense at this time.

3. Review of Current Tobacco Policy and Potential Revisions
Page 17 of 344

DRAFT



Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper requested discussion of this topic, stating that current policy re tobacco use has not been updated since 1981 and is
very short.  She shared a Tobacco-Free K-12 School Model Policy currently used by other Florida counties and indicated the need to
do more re vaping.  She would like to adopt the policy she submitted as well as discuss what could be done differently or better to
take advantage of free services from different organizations for students, obtain signage across campuses, and have organizations
come in and speak to students.

Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate and Culture, recently met with Tobacco Free Florida, who apologized for putting out some
misinformation re board policy.  Mrs. Forgarty distributed information highlighting current policy embedded in the Code of Student
Conduct and discussed policy as it correlates to the proposed policy. Additional partnerships (Hanley Foundation, Air National Guard,
and Clay Action Coalition) are programs currently utilized to provide education on the effects of tobacco.

The communication and instruction re how the Code of Conduct is reviewed and communicated to students and parents were
discussed. Mrs. Hanson discussed the need for a systematic approach where every student hears the information from a school
principal.  She likes the clear policy proposed by Mrs. Skipper.  Mrs. Gilhousen noted the need to address the attachment issue,
indicating that relationship is the reason people turn to substances to fulfill that void and that this is a larger conversation to be had
with the community to demonstrate how building relationships will insulate students from these harmful things.  Mrs. Skipper indicated
a policy is needed to hold individuals accountable (amend board policy) and then allow partners into schools more often to speak to
students.  Suggestions were also made to have the organizations team up with physical education coaches and include this
instruction in science or physical education classes.

Mr. Blocker will explore augmenting the Code of Conduct and work with Mr. Broskie and staff to strengthen policy.

4. Discussion of School Visitations

Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper indicated that a lack of a visitor policy has been brought to her attention.  She has submitted potential policies to Mr.
Blocker and had conversations with him.  She advised that a majority of the state has similar policies and implements some degree of
background checks for visitors and any individuals that will be around students and that this is needed for student safety.  Mr. Blocker
noted that there are state statutes that govern this and indicate notification requirements.

Mr. Broskie noted that all visitors come to the school front office and go through the Raptor system which determines if the individual
is on any registry.  Offending parents still have a legal right to their student, and those individuals are escorted to their destination, and
specific individuals are monitored.

Mr. Blocker advised FS 966.0222 addresses certain types of offenses and the requirements for notification of those individuals as well
as supervision guidelines.  Additional discussion included requirements for background checks and various restrictions on individuals
who have offended.

Mrs. Skipper proposed requiring all coaches not employed by the district to have a full Level II background check due to the high
potential of them being alone with students.  Terri Dennis, Coordinator of Communications, discussed the screening process for
volunteers, including cross-referencing names on the predator site and reporting those names to Human Resources, pulling up arrest
records in Florida, and placing foreign parents on hold until the issuance of a government ID can be checked.

Mr. Broskie would like to see the policies provided by Mrs. Skipper to Mr. Blocker and discuss with Human Resources.

5. Discussion of Potential Buyout of School Board Attorney (Bickner) Contract

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson appreciated the services of Mr. Blocker and his firm and proposed a buyout of Mr. Bickner's contract so a fresh start may
continue with sole reliance on Mr. Blocker.  

The associated total cost of this proposal is $65,000.  Mr. Broskie stressed the importance of transition.  Mr. Blocker, in response to a
question re the current sufficiency of transition, shared his expectation that Mr. Bickner would continue to finish current district work as
he worked with the board on developing relationships and addressing their priorities.  He indicated Mr. Bickner's early departure would
create some challenges and more time would be helpful but he can work with whatever the board decides.  

Further discussion included managing the focus of Mr. Bickner's work while not changing the transition timeline and determining a
process for evaluating the sufficiency of legal needs approximately 90 days after the transition is complete.

*A recess was taken from 1:18 p.m. to 1:25 p.m.

6. Discussion of Book Challenge Policy and Potential Revisions

Minutes:

R D il Chi f A d i Offi id d i f th t h l lib b k li d th t t f h ll dPage 18 of 344

DRAFT



Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, provided an overview of the current school library book policy and the status of challenged
books, indicating that the revisions approved by the board in April 2023 have worked well and are congruent with laws that went into
effect on July 1, 2023.  If no additional action is taken, constituents will continue to read, at board meetings, things not covered by the
statute such as profanity, drug use, and gang violence.  The board has overseen the district providing total control to parents. 
Secondary parents have complete control of what their students can access, making books not accessible to students without written
parent permission.  To go further in book restriction could be considered a superimposition of other parents' controls.  A diverse group
of community members has developed a set of community guidelines for library books.  This list could be added to existing policy as a
filter, but ramifications could be record-setting numbers of removed books, increased media attention, and potential litigation. 
Currently, policy provides that the board votes not on the books themselves, but on whether the law was appropriately applied by the
team responsible for reviewing the books.

Mrs. Hanson distributed the Library Media and Instructional Materials Training Transcript to board members.  These guidelines were
implemented by the Florida Department of Education in April.  She reviewed the document, highlighting the goals of materials being
age-appropriate (taking into consideration grade levels, maturity, reading levels, etc.), free of bias, having an educational purpose,
being relevant to the needs and interests of students, and indicating a need to survey stakeholders for interests and provide an
opportunity for input.  She does not view having the most banned books as a source of shame and supports being emboldened to do
what is right.  She believes there are non-pornographic materials that also do not belong on library shelves.  She would like to discuss
procedural changes in policy and provide guidance for consideration of a rubric that may be used to evaluate reading materials.

Mrs. Skipper supports Mrs. Hanson's perspective and doing what is best with tax-payers funding, indicating it is a good idea to ask the
public and parents for input.  

Mrs. Bolla asked if books are being purchased and was advised there is still a freeze on purchasing books.  She indicated she
has considered the specificity of community limits and input being part of guidelines, not policy, but indicates she does not want to
infringe on the rights of parents, who are key and should have the ultimate discretion and authority over their child's reading material.

Mrs. Gilhousen appreciates the community standards that have been developed but believes this set of standards should be provided
to media specialists, at that level, rather than being included in policy, giving media specialists the opportunity to de-select books at
the school level.

Mr. Blocker advised the purpose of the statute was to get obscene materials away from children and that the legislature had the
option to go further but chose not to.  The legislature has placed the responsibility of this matter with the board.  Current policy is
effective as far as keeping the board removed to a certain point.  He encouraged the board to think about whether they want to modify
current policy by incorporating community standards, allowed for by statute and legally defensible, but which may create additional
opportunities to be challenged.  Adopting community standards that have not been fully vetted through the court system may bring
litigation and associated costs.  He will review the policy to assess the need for any revisions, avoiding community standards, but
making layers of echelon below the board to protect them.  He recommended time to absorb and research. Board members will email
any input to Mr. Blocker.  Any guidelines should be developed by the superintendent and staff, with the board having input, because
this procedure has to do with operational function.

In the course of scheduling additional discussion on this topic, Mrs. Gilhousen indicated that she would contact Sheriff Cook to obtain
information and determine whether a presentation would be made for consideration on a different matter.

7. Lunch Break (Recess) as Necessary

Minutes:

A lunch break was not taken.  The board took a recess from 11:10 a.m. to 11:22 a.m. and a recess from 1:18 p.m. to 1:25 p.m.

Questions from the Audience

8. Questions From the Audience

Minutes:

Victoria Kidwell, President, Clay County Education Association, expressed concern re the proposed dissemination of guidelines to
media specialists that may be interpreted differently and if guidance would be provided to bring greater clarity as individual
judgements may differ. 

Superintendent Comments

9. Superintendent Comments

Minutes:

Mr. Broskie advised Clay Day will be held in January and requested the board give thought to legislative priorities to be discussed at
the October workshop.

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

Page 19 of 344

DRAFT



School Board Comments

10. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson requested clarification from Mr. Broskie re whether the instruction of 7 Mindsets is mandatory.  Mr. Broskie responded
that a school leadership team may determine this curriculum should be utilized.

Mrs. Skipper requested an update on transportation.  Mr. Broskie indicated there are currently approximately five (5) doubleback
routes due to drivers leaving, eight (8) drivers out on FML, eleven (11) trainees (3-4 weeks training process), and nine (9) interviews
completed, currently in the Human Resources process.  Mrs. Hanson asked about double-ups (seat sharing) and Mr. Broskie advised
that is not typically done and he will look into that. 

Mrs. Skipper suggested each department research systems that can accomplish multiple things so it doesn't take large amounts of
staff's time to supply board members with requested documentation and to condense programs as a cost savings measure.

Adjournment  (3:25 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 20 of 344

DRAFT



Date: Oct 05 2023 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

October 5, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (Lakeside Junior High Chorus, Michelle Duchemin, Music Teacher)

Invocation  (Pastor Jeromy Larson, Family Church Green Cove Springs)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Schools' Excellence for Kids Heart Challenge, American Heart Association

FY24 American Heart Association.pdf

Minutes:

Amanda Tewey, Development Director, American Heart Association, recognized the following "Top Impact" schools for their support of
The American Heart Association's mission of advancing cardiovascular health for all:

Thunderbolt Elementary - $26,905
Orange Park Elementary - $20,071
Oakleaf Village Elementary - $17,021

Clay County District Schools ranked 8th among Florida school districts generating funds in support of the vision to provide life-saving
information and skills that benefit the schools and community.

Presenters

School Showcase  (Lakeside Junior High, Dustin James, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

2. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Leigh Ann Lunsford 
Judith Chapple
Constance Higginbotham 
Tara Richardson
Heather Buentello 
Zoe Lewis
Tanya Kacsan 
Bruce Friedman - read from Heroine - said this is constitutionally protected speech, 
Adrianna Jarquin 
Jackie Cetnar
Pamela Henry 

Page 21 of 344

DRAFT



Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on August 29, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on September 7,
2023

2023 Aug 29 Board Workshop.pdf

2023 Sep 7 - Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2023 Sep 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

School Board Member

4. C2 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS 78th Annual Joint Conference

Information Technology Services

5. C3 - Google Workspace for Education Renewal

240043 Google Workspace for Education Plus thru 2026.pdf

Signature Page_Executed.pdf

6. C4 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Adopt Revisions to School Board Policy 7.00 (Information Services)

CCSD - 7.00 Information Services Draft 2023.pdf

Legal Adv. Notice of PH Revisions to SB Policy 7.00 Information Services.pdf

Human Resources

7. C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

October 5 2023 Board Agenda - Updated.pdf

8. C6 - Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and St. Leo University

MOU - St. Leo University.pdf

Executed 240033 St. Leo.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

9. C7 - School Improvement Plan Approval

School Improvement Plans 23-24.pdf

10. C8 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

K12 Out of County Travel 10-5.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

11. C9 - Approve Life-Care Educational Institution Affiliation Agreement

LifeCare Affiliation Agreement 2023 revised.pdf

Instruction-K-12 Academic

12. C10 - 2023-24 Early College Program (formerly Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay County and
District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College

SJRSC Early College Program 230161.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

13. C11 - Proclamation for Red Ribbon Week

Red Ribbon Week Proclamation 2023.docx .pdf

Business Affairs

14. C12 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

10.05.23 - 23-24 Allocation Summary .pdf
Page 22 of 344

DRAFT



Business Affairs-Insurance

15. C13 - Advantage Package for Clinical Rules in Pharmacy Program

16. C14 - Contract Services for Stop Loss Insurance

17. C15 - Implementing SaveOnSP Program in Pharmacy Program

Business Affairs-Property

18. C16 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT SEPTEMBER, 2023

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT SEPTEMBER, 2023..pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

19. C17 - Bid/Contract Renewal

Operations

20. C18 - Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing for Amendments to School Board Policy 1.14, Sales Surtax Citizens Advisory
Committee

Legal Adv. Notice of PH Revisions to SB Policy 1.14 Sales Surtax Citizens Advisory Committee.pdf

1.14 SALES SURTAX CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE_revised .pdf

Operations-Facilities

21. C19 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 10.5.23

22. C20 - Change Order #8 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement

CO 8 OPH Stadium Repair.Replacement.pdf

23. C21 - Change Order #2 for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

CO 2 OPJ Restroom Renovations.pdf

24. C22 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Clay High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - CHS

25. C23 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Keystone Heights High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - Keystone Heights High

26. C24 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Middleburg High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - MHS

27. C25 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Ridgeview High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - RHS

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - RHS Continued

28. C26 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Fleming Island High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award for FIH

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award for FIH Continued

29. C27 - Substantial and Final Completion of Ridgeview High School Roof Repair/Replacement Building 2

Certificate of Substantial Completion - RHS Roof Repair Replacement Building 2.pdf

Certificate of Final Completion - RHS Roof Repair Replacement Building 2.pdf

30. C28 - Final Completion of Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Certificate of Final Completion WES Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations

31. C29 - Final Completion of Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 Kitchen/Cafeteria
Renovations

Page 23 of 344

DRAFT



Certificate of Final Completion RVE Roof Repair Replacement

32. C30 - County-Wide Professional Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Contract Award

H2 Engineering - CW Mechanical Electrical Engineering Contract

Haddad Engineering - CW Mechanical Electrical Engineering Contract

Mitchell Gulledge Engineering - CW Mechanical Electrical Engineering Contract

33. C31 - Change Order #5 (Reconciliation of GMP) for Spring Park Elementary School

Change Order #5 for Spring Park Elementary School.pdf

34. C32 - Final Completion of Spring Park Elementary School

Certificate of Final Completion for Spring Park Elementary School

Adoption of Consent Agenda

35. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (None)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

36. Superintendent's Update

Superintendent's Update 10-05-2023.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Schools of the Month
Students of the Month
College and Career Fair
Dads Take Your Child to School Day
Celebrate Freedom Week
Upcoming Events

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

37. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action A.

38. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Minutes:

Th H R S i l A ti B Page 24 of 344

DRAFT



There was no Human Resources Special Action B.

School Board Attorney Remarks  (None)

School Board Member Remarks

39. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson expressed her appreciation of serving on the board and the efforts of Superintendent Broskie and Jeremiah Blocker,
School Board Attorney, for their efforts to find a solution to the current library book status.  She would like to focus on student
achievement and believes the state of Florida would be better served by disassociating from the American Library Association and
some of its policies and adopting a district policy that includes standards that reflect the community.  She supports reaching out with
research and ensuring the information is obtained to make good decisions.  She advocates curating, not banning, books.

Mrs. Clark spoke to Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, to confirm that Clay County District Schools does not have to remain a part
of the American Library Association.  She supports reviewing the books brought to the attention of the district and board, while
indicating it takes time and patience to carefully go through them.  She desires to have a vote on the November agenda re the
direction of the safety and security of students and indicated a need to find a time to address the matter in greater depth at a
workshop.  Mrs. Gilhousen advised that she has been in contact with Sheriff Cook and will re-connect next week as information is
awaited from the sheriff to schedule further discussion.

Mrs. Skipper advised that the books that have been removed violate the Florida statute, pointing out that a challenge differs from
removal and that the libraries are being cleaned of inappropriate content that is not scholarly.  She thanked Mr. Blocker for listening
and providing good advice as well as his willingness to work and build the relationships that are important for the district, constituents,
the board, and students.

Mrs. Bolla is proud of the district, teachers, and the many activities being offered, reflecting on the rewarding feeling of coming in
contact with parents who went through the CCDS school system and now have their own children attending Clay schools.  She
commented on the Orange Park High ribbon cutting of the stadium and being able to see former students who are now attending
Orange Park High.  She appreciated the Middleburg High gymnasium being named to honor Coach Prewitt who pioneered women's
sports in Clay County.  She participated with Clay Education Foundation in the awarding of grants to teachers, Dads and Donuts, an
open house at Keystone Heights Jr. Sr. High with their Community in Education program, a Clay Cares Closet started at Clay High,
the Habitat for Humanity Leaders Build and an upcoming Ridgeview High Chorus concert next week.  She noted the Dolly Parton
Imagination Library and the importance of giving parents, grandparents, and guardians the opportunity to make decisions for their
children.

Mrs. Gilhousen and her family have enjoyed a fun football season at Friday Night Lights games.  She has been impressed by the
student section and by the number of teachers who come to watch their students play, having discussions with parents about the
talent they observe in the students, and encouraging and building character in those students.  She asked Mr. Broskie if it would be a
board decision to disassociate with the American Library Association, and Mr. Broskie indicated that he would research and get back
to the board.

Adjournment  (7:25 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 25 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 11022023.pdf

Page 26 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-11022023.pdf


Page 27 of 344

DRAFT



Page 28 of 344

DRAFT



Page 29 of 344

DRAFT



Page 30 of 344

DRAFT



Page 31 of 344

DRAFT



Page 32 of 344

DRAFT



Page 33 of 344

DRAFT



Page 34 of 344

DRAFT



Page 35 of 344

DRAFT



Page 36 of 344

DRAFT



Page 37 of 344

DRAFT



Page 38 of 344

DRAFT



Page 39 of 344

DRAFT



Page 40 of 344

DRAFT



Page 41 of 344

DRAFT



Page 42 of 344

DRAFT



Page 43 of 344

DRAFT



Page 44 of 344

DRAFT



Page 45 of 344

DRAFT



Page 46 of 344

DRAFT



Page 47 of 344

DRAFT



Page 48 of 344

DRAFT



Page 49 of 344

DRAFT



Page 50 of 344

DRAFT



Page 51 of 344

DRAFT



Page 52 of 344

DRAFT



Page 53 of 344

DRAFT



Page 54 of 344

DRAFT



Page 55 of 344

DRAFT



Page 56 of 344

DRAFT



Page 57 of 344

DRAFT



Page 58 of 344

DRAFT



Page 59 of 344

DRAFT



Page 60 of 344

DRAFT



Page 61 of 344

DRAFT



Page 62 of 344

DRAFT



Page 63 of 344

DRAFT



Page 64 of 344

DRAFT



Page 65 of 344

DRAFT



Page 66 of 344

DRAFT



Page 67 of 344

DRAFT



Page 68 of 344

DRAFT



Page 69 of 344

DRAFT



Page 70 of 344

DRAFT



Page 71 of 344

DRAFT



Page 72 of 344

DRAFT



Page 73 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proclamation 24-07 to Establish November 13 - 17, 2023 as National Education Week and November 15, 2023 as
Educational Support Professionals' Day

Description
Every year, the National Education Association establishes National Education Week.  This year, National Education Week is
November 13 - 17, 2023.  Within National Education Week, one day is set aside to recognize Educational Support Professionals. 
This year, Education Support Professionals' Day is Wednesday, November 15, 2023.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish November 13 - 17, 2023  as National Education Week and November 15, 2023 as Educational Support Professionals'
Day

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation 24-07 National Education Week - Google Docs.pdf

Page 74 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-24-07-national-education-week-google-docs.pdf


 SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 PROCLAMATION # 24 - 07 

 WHEREAS,  November 13 - 17, 2023, has been designated National Education Week; and 

 WHEREAS  , November 15, 2023, has been designated Educational Support Professionals’ Day; and 

 WHEREAS,  this occasion allows us to honor and show  gratitude to individuals who shoulder the 
 responsibility of ensuring every child in Clay County receives a high-quality education which 
 progresses our national prosperity, provides a sound foundation for our freedoms, and helps 
 develop our citizenry for the rigors of the modern age; and 

 WHEREAS,  we believe that the outstanding educational  experience students receive in Clay County 
 is  built  upon  a  bedrock  of  support  from  vital  partners  who  ensure  a  safe,  warm,  and  welcoming 
 environment  which  develops  the  diverse  potential  of  children,  and  helps  nurture  in  each  a 
 sense of excellence and respect for all people; and 

 WHEREAS,  all Clay County District School employee’s  duties are woven throughout the fabric of  our 
 district’s mission  with mastery and professionalism,  thus  providing a public education 
 experience that is stimulating, challenging, and creates opportunities for all children;  and 

 WHEREAS,  these valued individuals are deserving of  our ongoing appreciation and recognition for 
 their efforts in serving the families of Clay County through maintaining and creating 
 welcoming facilities in which exploration and discovery can occur so that our students 
 may seize any and all opportunities afforded them. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  that the School Board  of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
 proclaim  November  13  -  17,  2023,  as  National  Education  Week;  and  November  15,  2023,  as 
 Educational Support Professionals’ Day in Clay County. 

 Duly  adopted  and  approved  by  the  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida,  this  2nd  day  of 
 November 2023. 

 ATTEST: 

 _________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 David Broskie  School Board Chair 
 Superintendent of Schools 
 Clay County, Florida 

 Affix Seal 

Page 75 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Wilkinson
Elementary

School

April 5,
2024

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Explore the law of conservation of energy by
differentiating between kinetic and potential energy. 
Students will identify where kinetic energy is
transformed into potential energy and vice versa.   

         
         

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, heather.teto@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6906.

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

WES_Out of State FT.pdf

Page 76 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wes_out-of-state-ft.pdf


Page 77 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Amendment 1 to Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and PACE Center for Girls - Clay

Description
An amendment to the collaborative agreement between the School Board of Clay County and Pace Center for Girls, Inc., to
address the needs of female students in Clay County.  This program works in conjunction with the Department of
Juvenile Justice, to provide an educational program and related services for eligible female students (up to 44 students).  This
program focuses on student needs dealing with specialized counseling, credit recovery services, life skills, positive gender
identification, community service learning projects, and career exploration.  Students attend the program for approximately 1
year.  The collaboration between the two organizations has allowed students to seek an alternative setting to a previously
unsuccessful environment. 

Gap Analysis
This amendment replaces section 13 in order to release the SBCC Food Service obligation.  

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with PACE Center for Girls and the amendment to the agreement benefits
the female students of the district.

Expected Outcomes
By continuing the collaboration with Pace Center for Girls, Inc, it is expected that students will be identified by the secondary
schools, Bannerman Learning Center, recommended by parents, and/or the student volunteers for the program.  Pace Center for
Girls, Inc. is notified by any of these sources and students are oriented to the program.  Once the students are enrolled, they begin
the counseling program offered and then the credit/course recovery program begins.  Periodic meetings take place to review
outcomes and to communicate with the District on proposed return dates of the students.  Through the District plan, students are
able to recoup credits and, therefore, remain on track to either be promoted or to earn the necessary credits towards graduation. 
Curriculum deficiencies are addressed, counseling and behavior therapy takes place, increasing the likelihood of success for the
students.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.
Stategy 1.3: Graduate students who are ready to enroll, enlist, or be employed in the workforce.

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County approve Amendment 1 to the Agreement between SBCC and PACE Center for Girls -
Clay.

Contact
Roger Daily, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Education; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
Clay County allocates 95% of an FTE top PACE Center for Girls, Inc.;  5% of an FTE is allocated to the School Board of Clay
County.

Review Comments

Attachments

240052 PACE Amd 1.pdf

Page 78 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240052-pace-amd-1.pdf


Page 79 of 344

DRAFT



Page 80 of 344

DRAFT



Page 81 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 82 of 344

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Clay High School
11/2 -
11/3/23

Ocala, FL
Varsity
Swim
Team

State swim meet

Clay High School
2/8 -
2/12/24

Orlando, FL
Competitio
n Cheer
Team

National High School Championships

Fleming Island
High School

9/22 -
9/23/23

Cartersville,
GA

Boys/Girls
Cross
country

Wingfoot Classic

Fleming Island
High School

9/29 -
9/30/23

Tallahassee,
FL

Boys/Girls
Cross
country

Pre-State Cross Country Meet

Fleming Island
High School

11/17 -
11/18/23

Tallahassee,
FL

Cross
country

State Cross Country Meet

Fleming Island
High School

11/9 -
11/11/23

Howey-in-the-
hills, FL

Boys Golf State Golf Meet

Fleming Island
High School

12/8 -
12/9/23

Kissimmee,
FL

Wrestling Danny Byron Invitational

Fleming Island
HIgh School

12/1/23
Camden
County, GA

Wrestling Wrestling Competition

Fleming Island
High School

1/12 -
1/13/24

Suwanee, FL Wrestling Wrestling Competition

Fleming Island
High School

TBD
Kissimmee,
FL

Wrestling State Competition

Keystone
Heights High
School

11/9 -
11/12/23

Orlando, FL
Speech &
Debate
Team

National Civics and Debate Championship

Keystone
Heights High
School

4/4 - 4/6/24
Kissimmee,
FL

Varsity
Softball
Team

Kissimee Klassic Tournament 

Middleburg High
School

10/30 -
10/31/23
and
11/6 -
11/8/23

Perdido Bay,
FL
Howey-in-the-
hills, FL

Golf Golf Regionals and State Championship

Middleburg High
School

11/9/23
Middleburg
High School
Gym

Boys
Basketball

Team bonding

Middleburg High
School

12/15 -
12/16/23

Oviedo, FL
Boys
Wrestling

Wrestling competition

Middleburg High
School

12/22 -
12/23/23

Ft. Walton
Beach, FL

Boys
Wrestling

Wrestling competition

Middleburg High
School

12/8 -
12/9/23

Tallahassee,
FL

Boys
Wrestling

Wrestling competition

Page 83 of 344

DRAFT



Middleburg High
School

1/12 -
1/13/24

St. Cloud, FL
Boys
Wrestling

Wrestling competition

Middleburg High
School

3/11 -
3/13/24

Orlando, FL

Band,
Chorus,
Musical
Theatre

Fine arts community building

Oakleaf High
School

9/30/23 Bruswick, GA NJROTC All NJROTC Orienteering Meet

Oakleaf High
School

9/8 -
9/10/23

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC All NJROTC Orienteering Meet

Oakleaf High
School

10/21/23 Leesburg, GA NJROTC Lee County Drill Meet

Oakleaf High
School

12/16/23
Kingsland,
GA

Boys/Girls
basketball

Basketball competition

Orange Park
High School

12/28 -
12/30/23

Marianna, FL
Boys
Basketball

Milton Johnson Invitational

Orange Park
High School

2/9 -
2/12/24

Orlando, FL
Varsity and
JV Cheer

UCA National competition

Ridgeview High
School

10/13 -
10/14/23

Jackson, GA
NJROTC
Orientation

Orienteering meet

Ridgeview High
School

2/9 -
2/12/24

Orlando, FL
Varsity and
JV Cheer

UCA National competition

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer K12; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

November 2023 Board Backup.pdf

Page 84 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2023-board-backup_1.pdf


Page 85 of 344

DRAFT



Page 86 of 344

DRAFT



Page 87 of 344

DRAFT



Page 88 of 344

DRAFT



Page 89 of 344

DRAFT



Page 90 of 344

DRAFT



Page 91 of 344

DRAFT



Page 92 of 344

DRAFT



Page 93 of 344

DRAFT



Page 94 of 344

DRAFT



Page 95 of 344

DRAFT



Page 96 of 344

DRAFT



Page 97 of 344

DRAFT



Page 98 of 344

DRAFT



Page 99 of 344

DRAFT



Page 100 of 344

DRAFT



Page 101 of 344

DRAFT



Page 102 of 344

DRAFT



Page 103 of 344

DRAFT



Page 104 of 344

DRAFT



Page 105 of 344

DRAFT



Page 106 of 344

DRAFT



Page 107 of 344

DRAFT



Page 108 of 344

DRAFT



Page 109 of 344

DRAFT



Page 110 of 344

DRAFT



Page 111 of 344

DRAFT



Page 112 of 344

DRAFT



Page 113 of 344

DRAFT



Page 114 of 344

DRAFT



Page 115 of 344

DRAFT



Page 116 of 344

DRAFT



Page 117 of 344

DRAFT



Page 118 of 344

DRAFT



Page 119 of 344

DRAFT



Page 120 of 344

DRAFT



Page 121 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - 2023-2024 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar

Description
Per Rule 6A-1.094224, districts must add their district information to the uniform assessment calendar for the school year,
submit the calendar for district school board approval, and then publish the approved, populated uniform assessment calendar on
the district’s website and submit it to the state department of education.

Gap Analysis
Approval of this agenda item will satisfy the district's obligations to approve a uniform assessment calendar to submit to the
state.

Previous Outcomes
The board approved the 2022-2023 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar on August 4, 2022.

Expected Outcomes
The district will provide organized and structured implementation of state and local assessments in order to gather actionable
data on which to base instructional decisions tailored to student’s individual needs.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Student Success

Recommendation
That the School Board will approve the 2023-2024 Uniform Assessment Calendar.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Rodney Ivey, District Assessment Coordinator, 904-336-9639 rodney.ivey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

K12UniformAssessmentCalendar2324.pdf

Page 122 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/k12uniformassessmentcalendar2324.pdf


2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                1 

According to Section 1008.22(7)(b), Florida Statutes (F.S.), and State Board of Education Rule 6A-1.094224, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C), the uniform assessment 
calendar must be published on the Florida Department of Education (FDOE) website by January of each year for, at a minimum, the following two school years. Prior to posting, 
FDOE will complete sections 1 through 4 with the appropriate information. 

Each school district must then complete the uniform calendar with district-required assessment information, publish the calendar to the district website, and provide it to the 
FDOE by October 1 of each school year. Districts must provide completed calendars to schools and include the calendar in their parent guides. In addition, each school must 
publish the completed calendar on its website. 

The statewide assessment information provided by the Department in sections 1 through 4 should not be altered; however, districts may otherwise modify and populate this 
template to accurately indicate their assessment schedules for the school year. 

1. Glossary of Assessment Terms  
The following glossary includes definitions of assessment terms and explanations of acronyms used throughout this template. The FDOE will populate this section with state-
level terms in addition to those specified in s. 1008.22(7)(i), F.S. Districts may add rows as needed for additional glossary terms that are specific to district-required assessments 
but should not modify any FDOE-provided information.  

Acronym/Term Definition 
ACCESS for ELLs Assessing Comprehension and Communication in English State-to-State (ACCESS) for English Language Learners (ELLs) 
Accommodation Per Rule 6A-1.0943, F.A.C., “Accommodations are defined as adjustments to the presentation of the statewide standardized assessment 

questions, methods of recording examinee responses to the questions, scheduling for the administration of a statewide standardized 
assessment to include amount of time for administration, settings for administration of a statewide standardized assessment, and the use of 
assistive technology or devices to facilitate the student’s participation in a statewide standardized assessment.” 

B.E.S.T. Benchmarks for Excellent Student Thinking 
CBT Computer-Based Test 
CLT Classic Learning Test 
Concordant and Comparative 
Scores 

Concordant and comparative scores refer to scores that have been determined by establishing a relationship between assessments that 
measure similar (but not identical) constructs, such as the Algebra 1 End-of-Course Assessment and the SAT. In statute, concordant refers to 
scores associated with the ELA assessment and comparative refers to scores associated with the Algebra 1 assessment. A student can meet 
assessment graduation requirements by earning a concordant or comparative score as specified in Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 

Diagnostic Assessments that measure students’ understanding of a subject area or skills base, which allow teachers and educators to evaluate student 
learning, focusing on strengths and areas of need. 

District Window The selected dates within the statewide window during which a district will administer a given assessment.  
District-Required Assessments Assessments required by the school district for students in a specific grade or course. 
ELA English Language Arts 
EOC End-of-Course 
Evaluative Assessments that measure student proficiency at selected intervals in order to compare change over time and to compare state-level results. 

Page 123 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                2 

Acronym/Term Definition 
FAST Florida Assessment of Student Thinking 
FCLE Florida Civic Literacy Exam 
Formative Formative assessments are the formal and informal ways that teachers and students gather and respond to evidence of student learning. 

Formative assessments are part of teaching in the classroom. Formative assessments will not result in a score that will appear on a student's 
report card, but they serve the greater purpose of informing both students and teachers on what changes need to happen in classroom 
instruction to better serve the needs of individual students. 

FSA Florida Standards Assessments 
FSAA Florida Standards Alternate Assessment 
Interim Interim assessments are administered on a smaller scale (i.e., school or district) with results that can be used at the classroom level or 

aggregated at the school- or district-level. Depending on the design, interim assessments can be used to predict a student’s ability to succeed 
on a summative assessment, to evaluate a program, or to diagnose student learning gaps. 

NAEP National Assessment of Educational Progress 
PBT Paper-Based Test 
PM1 The baseline administration of FAST Progress Monitoring in the beginning of the school year. 
PM2 The midyear administration of FAST Progress Monitoring in the middle of the school year. 
PM3 The summative administration of FAST Progress Monitoring at the end of the school year. 
Progress Monitoring The process used to determine whether a student’s academic performance is improving, at what rate it is improving, and how effective 

instruction has been. In accordance with s. 1008.25(8)(b)1., F.S., the progress monitoring assessments for VPK through grade 2 must be 
administered at least three times within a program year or school year, as applicable, with the first administration occurring no later than the 
first 30 instructional days after a student’s enrollment or the start of the program or school year, the second administration occurring midyear, 
and the third administration occurring within the last 30 days of the program or school year. In accordance with s. 1008.25(8)(b)2., F.S., the 
progress monitoring assessments for grades 3 through 10 must be administered at the beginning, middle, and end of the school year. 

PSAT/NMSQT Preliminary SAT/National Merit Scholarship Qualifying Test 
Summative Assessments that evaluate student mastery of Florida’s academic standards at or near the conclusion of the course of instruction. 
Statewide, Standardized 
Assessments 

All assessments required by s. 1008.22, F.S. 

Statewide Window The range of dates during which districts and/or schools may choose to administer a given assessment. 
Testing Time The amount of time individual students are each given to respond to test items on each test. 
VAM A Value-Added Model (VAM) is used by some school districts as part of their educator evaluation system. It is also used in the approval process 

for teacher preparation programs and as part of the criteria to extend an educator’s temporary teaching certificate. 
VPK Florida’s Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program 
 

Page 124 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                3 

2. Test, Type, and Purpose/Use 
FDOE will populate this section with information related to state-level tests. Districts may add rows as needed to define district-required tests, test type, and their purpose/use 
in the district but should not modify any FDOE-provided information. If additional types are added, define applicable types in the glossary. 

Test Type Purpose/Required Use Statutory Authority/Required Use Citation 

ACCESS for ELLs Diagnostic Measure English language acquisition of ELLs s. 1003.56, F.S. 
Rule 6A-6.0902, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-6.09021, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-6.0903, F.A.C. 

Alternate ACCESS for 
ELLs 

Diagnostic Measure English language acquisition of ELLs with significant 
cognitive disabilities  

ACT Summative Inform course placement; can be used as a concordant or 
comparative score to meet assessment graduation requirements; 
provide postsecondary opportunities 

s. 1008.22, F.S. 
Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 

CLT Summative Inform course placement; can be used as a concordant or 
comparative score to meet assessment graduation requirements; 
provide postsecondary opportunities 

s. 1008.22, F.S. 
Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 

FAST PM1 and PM2 Diagnostic/Progress Monitoring Provides information in mastering the appropriate grade-level 
standards and provides information on students’ progress to 
parents, teachers, and school and program administrators. Used to 
provide data for accountability of the Voluntary Prekindergarten 
Education Program. 

s. 1008.25(8), F.S. 
s. 1008.2125, F.S. 
s. 1002.68, F.S. 
Rule 6M-8.601, F.A.C. 

FCLE Summative If passed, exempts students from the postsecondary civic literacy 
assessment requirement established by s. 1007.25(4), F.S. 

s. 1003.4282(3)(d), F.S. 
s. 1007.25(4)(b), F.S. 

FAST PM1 and PM2 Progress Monitoring Provide information regarding whether a student’s academic 
performance is improving, at what rate it is improving, and how 
effective instruction has been 

 

B.E.S.T. ELA Writing Summative Purpose: FAST PM3, B.E.S.T., Next Generation Sunshine State 
Standards assessments measure student achievement of Florida’s 
academic standards/access points.  
Required uses: third grade retention; high school standard 
diploma; EOC assessments as 30% of course grade; school grades; 
school improvement rating; district grades; differentiated 
accountability; VAM; scholar designation; Credit Acceleration 
Program; school improvement plans; school, district, state, and 
federal reporting 

s. 1002.38, F.S. 
s. 1002.68, F.S. 
s. 1003.4156, F.S. 
s. 1003.4282, F.S. 
s. 1004.04, F.S. 
s. 1004.85, F.S. 
s. 1008.22, F.S. 
s. 1008.25, F.S. 
s. 1008.33, F.S. 
s. 1008.34, F.S. 
s. 1008.341, F.S. 
s. 1012.34, F.S. 

B.E.S.T. EOC Summative 
FAST PM3 Progress Monitoring/Summative 
FSA Summative 
Florida Alternate 
Assessment—
Performance Task 

Summative 

Florida Alternate 
Assessment—Datafolio 

Portfolio 

Science/Social Studies 
EOC 

Summative 

Statewide Science Summative 

Page 125 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                4 

Test Type Purpose/Required Use Statutory Authority/Required Use Citation 

Assessment s. 1012.56, F.S. 
Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.094221, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.094222, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.0943, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.09432, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.09981, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.099811, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-1.099822, F.A.C. 
Rule 6A-5.0411, F.A.C. 

NAEP Evaluative Measure student performance for comparison among state and 
national populations over time 

s. 1008.22, F.S. 

PreACT Summative Inform course placement  s. 1007.35, F.S. 
PSAT/NMSQT Summative Inform course placement; can be used as a concordant or 

comparative score to meet Algebra 1 assessment graduation 
requirements 

s. 1007.35, F.S. 
Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 

SAT Summative Inform course placement; can be used as a concordant or 
comparative score to meet assessment graduation requirements; 
provide postsecondary opportunities 

s. 1008.22, F.S. 
Rule 6A-1.09422, F.A.C. 

 
3. Required Statewide Assessments  
The following assessments are required for students as indicated in the Students to Be Tested column. FDOE will complete this section with the required statewide 
assessments. Districts should then populate the District Window column for each assessment in the table but should not modify any FDOE-provided information.  

When calculating total test time in Section 6, do not include times for assessments indicated by grey rows, which indicate duplicate assessment windows (e.g., EOCs), 
assessments that take the place of another assessment, or assessments that do not have a specified testing time. 

Assessment Students to Be Tested Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

VPK FAST PM1 Students enrolled in 
VPK 

First 30 instructional 
days after a student’s 
enrollment or the start 
of a program year or 
school year 

August 10-September 
20, 2023 CBT 10–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Page 126 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                5 

Assessment Students to Be Tested Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

FAST PM1 K–Grade 1 ELA 
Reading 

August 7–September 29, 
20231 

August 10-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 10–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM1 Grade 2 ELA Reading August 7–September 29, 
20231 

August 10-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 15–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM1 K–Grade 2 
Mathematics 

August 7–September 29, 
20231 

August 10-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 20–30 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM1 Grades 3–10 ELA 
Reading 

August 14–September 
29, 2023 

August 14-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 90 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM1 Grades 3–5 
Mathematics 

August 14–September 
29, 2023 

August 14-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 80 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM1 Grades 6–8 
Mathematics 

August 14–September 
29, 2023 

August 14-September 
29, 2023 CBT2 100 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Alternate Assessment 
Datafolio4 

Grades 3–10 ELA 
(Reading & Writing); 
Grades 3–8 
Mathematics; Grades 
5 & 8 Science; and 
Algebra 1, Biology 1, 
Civics, Geometry, & 
U.S. History EOCs 

Collection Period 1: 
September 11–October 
13, 2023 

September 11-October 
13, 2023 PBT Varies/Untimed June 2024 

Alternate Assessment 
Datafolio4 

Grades 3–10 ELA 
(Reading & Writing); 
Grades 3–8 
Mathematics; Grades 
5 & 8 Science; and 
Algebra 1, Biology 1, 
Civics, Geometry, & 
U.S. History EOCs 

Collection Period 2: 
November 13–
December 15, 2023 

November 13-
December 15, 2023 PBT Varies/Untimed June 2024 

Page 127 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                6 

Assessment Students to Be Tested Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

FCLE Students enrolled in 
associated courses 

November 6–December 
15, 2023 

November 6-December 
15, 2023 CBT2 160 minutes5 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

VPK FAST PM2 Students enrolled in 
VPK Midyear December 4, 2023-

January 26, 2024 CBT 10–20 minutes 
Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 K–Grade 1 ELA 
Reading 

December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 10–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 Grade 2 ELA Reading December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 15–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 K–Grade 2 
Mathematics 

December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 20–30 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 Grades 3–10 ELA 
Reading 

December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 90 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 Grades 3–5 
Mathematics 

December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 80 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM2 Grades 6–8 
Mathematics 

December 4, 2023–
January 26, 2024 

December 4, 2023-
January 26, 2024 CBT2 100 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Alternate Assessment 
Datafolio4 

Grades 3–10 ELA 
(Reading & Writing); 
Grades 3–8 
Mathematics; Grades 
5 & 8 Science; and 
Algebra 1, Biology 1, 
Civics, Geometry, & 
U.S. History EOCs 

Collection Period 3: 
February 26–March 29, 
2024 

February 26-March 29, 
2024 PBT Varies/Untimed June 2024 

Page 128 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                7 

Assessment Students to Be Tested Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

Alternate Assessment 
Performance Task6 

Grades 3–8 ELA & 
Mathematics; Grades 
4–8 Writing; Grades 5 
& 8 Science; and 
Civics EOC 

February 26–April 12, 
2024 

February 26-April 12, 
2024 PBT Varies/Untimed June 2024 

ACT7 
Grade 11 students in 
districts that selected 
ACT 

March–April 2024 March 4-April 26, 2024 CBT 175 minutes 
3–8 weeks after 
test 
administration 

SAT7 
Grade 11 students in 
districts that selected 
SAT 

March–April 2024 March 4-April 26, 2024 CBT 134 minutes 
2–4 weeks after 
test 
administration 

CLT7 
Grade 11 students in 
districts that selected 
CLT 

March–April 2024 N/A CBT 120 minutes Within 8 business 
days 

VPK FAST PM3 Students enrolled in 
VPK 

The last 30 days of the 
program or school year May 1-24, 2024 CBT 10–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 K–Grade 1 ELA 
Reading April 15–May 31, 20248 April 15-May 24, 2024 CBT2 10–20 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 Grade 2 ELA Reading April 15–May 31, 20248 April 15-May 24, 2024 CBT2 15–20 minutes 
Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 K–Grade 2 
Mathematics April 15–May 31, 20248 April 15-May 24, 2024 CBT2 20–30 minutes 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 Grades 3–10 ELA 
Reading May 1–May 31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 Grades 3–5 
Mathematics May 1–May 31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 100 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST PM3 Grades 6–8 
Mathematics May 1–May 31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Page 129 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                8 

Assessment Students to Be Tested Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

Alternate Assessment 
Performance Task6 

Grades 9 & 10 ELA; 
Grades 9 & 10 
Writing; and Algebra 
1, Biology 1, 
Geometry, and U.S. 
History EOCs 

March 11–April 26, 2024 March 11-April 26, 
2024 PBT Varies/Untimed June 2024 

B.E.S.T. ELA Writing Grades 4–10 April 1–12, 2024 April 1-12, 2024 CBT2 120 minutes5 June 2024 

FCLE Students enrolled in 
associated courses April 1–May 31, 2024 April 1-May 31, 2024 CBT2 160 minutes5 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

B.E.S.T. Algebra 1 and 
Geometry EOCs 

Students enrolled in 
associated courses May 1–31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 160 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Biology 1, Civics, and U.S. 
History EOCs  

Students enrolled in 
associated courses May 1–31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 160 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Statewide Science  Grades 5 and 8 May 1–31, 2024 May 1-24, 2024 CBT2 160 minutes3 
Immediately 
following test 
completion 

1 K–2 FAST assessments for PM1 must be administered within the first 30 instructional days of the school year.  
2 Paper-based accommodations (e.g., regular print, large print, braille, one-item-per-page) for computer-based tests are available to eligible students if indicated as an accommodation on an IEP or Section 504 plan. 
3 Any student who has not completed the session by the end of the allotted time may continue working; however, testing must be completed within the same school day. 
4 The Alternate Assessment Datafolio is designed for students with significant cognitive disabilities for whom participation in the general statewide assessment or the Alternate Assessment Performance Task is 
inappropriate, even with accommodations. 
5 Any student who has not completed the test by the end of the allotted time may continue working up to half the length of a typical school day. 
6 The Alternate Assessment Performance Task is designed for students with significant cognitive disabilities for whom participation in the general statewide assessment is inappropriate, even with accommodations. 
7 Each district must choose to administer the ACT, CLT, or SAT. Complete the row for the assessment chosen by your district and then change the background for the assessment not chosen to gray and leave the district 
window cell blank. 
8 K–2 FAST assessments for PM3 must be administered within the last 30 instructional days of the school year. 

 

 

Page 130 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                9 

4. Statewide Assessments for SELECT Students 
The following assessments are only intended for selected students/students in certain sub-groups. The FDOE will complete this section with the applicable statewide 
assessments. Districts should then populate the District Window column for the assessments in the table below but should not modify any FDOE-provided information. If an 
assessment is not being administered in your district, indicate “N/A” in the District Window column.  

Because the tests included in this section are not administered to all students or, in some cases, are optional for students, the testing time for these tests should not be 
included in the total testing time calculated in Section 6. 

Assessment Students to Be Tested4 Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

PreACT Grade 10 October 2023–April 2024 N/A PBT 150 minutes Approximately 2 
weeks after testing 

FSA ELA Writing Retake  September 11–29, 2023 September 11–29, 
2023 CBT1 120 minutes2 December 2023 

FSA ELA Reading Retake  September 11–29, 2023 September 11–29, 
2023 CBT1 180 minutes2 December 2023 

FSA Algebra 1 EOC Retake  September 11–29, 2023 September 11–29, 
2023 CBT1 180 minutes2 October 2023 

FAST Grade 10 ELA 
Reading Retake  September 11–October 6, 

2023 
September 11–
October 6, 2023 CBT1 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

B.E.S.T. Algebra 1 and 
Geometry EOCs  September 11–October 6, 

2023 
September 11–
October 6, 2023 CBT1 160 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Biology 1, Civics, and U.S. 
History EOCs  September 11–October 6, 

2023 
September 11–
October 6, 2023 CBT1 160 minutes3 October 2023 

FSAA—Performance Task5 

Grade 10 ELA and 
Algebra 1 EOC Makeup 

 September 25–October 
13, 2023 

September 25–
October 13, 2023 PBT Varies/Untimed December 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT Grade 10 October 2023 October 2-14, 2023 PBT 134 minutes January 2024 

NAEP Mathematics Select grades 4, 8, & 12 
students January–March 2024 January 31, 2024-

March 5, 2024 CBT 120 minutes 
Fall 2024 (grades 4 
& 8); Spring 2025 
(grade 12) 

NAEP Reading Select grades 4, 8, & 12 
students January–March 2024 January 31, 2024-

March 5, 2024 CBT 120 minutes 
Fall 2024 (grades 4 
& 8); Spring 2025 
(grade 12) 

Page 131 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                10 

Assessment Students to Be Tested4 Statewide Window District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 

NAEP Science Select grade 8 students January–March 2024 N/A CBT 120 minutes Spring 2025 

FAST Grade 10 ELA 
Reading Retake  November 27–December 

15, 2023 
November 27–
December 15, 2023 CBT1 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

B.E.S.T. Algebra 1 and 
Geometry EOCs  November 27–December 

15, 2023 
November 27–
December 15, 2023 CBT1 160 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

Biology 1, Civics, and U.S. 
History EOCs  November 27–December 

15, 2023 
November 27–
December 15, 2023 CBT1 160 minutes3 January 2024 

ACCESS for ELLs 
Grades K–12 currently 
classified as ELL with 
“LY” code 

January 22–March 15, 
2024 

January 22–March 
15, 2024 PBT 

Kindergarten: 45 
minutes 
Grades 1–12: 105–245 
minutes (varies by 
grade-level/tier) 

June 2024 

Alternate ACCESS for ELLs 

Grades 1–12 with 
significant cognitive 
disabilities and 
currently classified as 
ELL with “LY” code 

January 22–March 15, 
2024 

January 22–March 
15, 2024 PBT 80 minutes June 2024 

FSA ELA Grade 10 Retake 
– Writing  February 19–March 8, 

2024 
February 19–March 
8, 2024 CBT1 120 minutes2 May 2024 

FSA ELA Grade 10 Retake 
– Reading  February 19–March 8, 

2024 
February 19–March 
8, 2024 CBT1 180 minutes2 May 2024 

FSA Algebra 1 EOC Retake   February 19–March 8, 
2024 

February 19–March 
8, 2024 CBT1 180 minutes2 May 2024 

FAST Grade 10 ELA 
Reading Retake  May 1–31, 2024 May 1–31, 2024 CBT1 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

FAST Grade 10 ELA 
Reading Retake  July 15–26, 2024 July 15–26, 2024 CBT1 120 minutes3 

Immediately 
following test 
completion 

B.E.S.T. Algebra 1 and 
Geometry EOC  July 15–26, 2024 July 15–26, 2024 CBT1 160 minutes3 August 2024 

Biology 1, Civics, and U.S. 
History EOCs   July 15–26, 2024 July 15–26, 2024 CBT1 160 minutes3 August 2024 
1 Paper-based accommodations (e.g., regular print, large print, braille, one-item-per-page) for computer-based tests are available to eligible students if indicated as an accommodation on an IEP or Section 504 plan. 

Page 132 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                11 

2 Any student who has not completed a session by the end of the allotted time may continue working up to half the length of a typical school day. 
3 Any student who has not completed the session by the end of the allotted time may continue working; however, testing must be completed within the same school day. 
4 If indicated, “applicable students” relates to the sub-group(s) of students who may take that assessment; it does not indicate that all students throughout the state in that sub-group will take that assessment. 

Assessments for which no applicable student group is listed are available to students as needed but are not limited to any specific sub-group. 
5 The FSAA—Performance Task is designed for students with significant cognitive disabilities for whom participation in the general statewide assessment is inappropriate, even with accommodations. 

 
 
5. District-Required Assessment Information 
Complete the table below with assessments that are required for all schools in the district.  

Assessment Students to Be Tested District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 
Baseline Algebra 1, Algebra 1A, 
Algebra 1B 

Algebra August 10-31, 2023 CBT 90 minutes   Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Baseline Geometry Geometry August 10-31, 2023 CBT 90 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

ALEKS Initial Knowledge Check Math Grades 6-8, Algebra I,  
Algebra IA, Geometry &  
Foundations 9-12  

August 10-31, 2023 CBT 45 minutes Immediate 

Baseline U.S. History U.S. History August 10-31, 2023 CBT 75 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Baseline Civics Civics August 10-31, 2023 CBT 50 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Baseline Biology Biology August 10-31, 2023 CBT 90 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Baseline Science Grades 5 August 10-31, 2023 CBT 60 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Baseline Science Grade 8 August 10-31, 2023 CBT 100 minutes Results in Synergy the  

Page 133 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                12 

Assessment Students to Be Tested District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 
day after student tests 

Math i-Ready Diagnostic #1 Grades K-5 August 10-September 8, 
2023 

CBT 90 minutes Immediate 

Midyear Algebra I, Algebra 1A, 
Algebra 1B 

Algebra December 4-20, 2023 CBT 90 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear Geometry Geometry December 4-20, 2023 CBT 90 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear U.S. History U.S. History December 4-20, 2023 CBT 75 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear Civics Civics December 4-20, 2023 CBT 50 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear Biology Biology December 4-20, 2023 CBT 90 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear Science Grade 5 December 4-20, 2023 CBT 60 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Midyear Science Grade 8 December 4-20, 2023 CBT 60 minutes Results in Synergy the  
day after student tests 

Math i-Ready Diagnostic #2 Grades K-5 January 8-26, 2024 CBT 90 minutes Immediate 

End of Year Algebra 1A Algebra 1A May 1-30, 2024 CBT 45 minutes Immediate 

ALEKS Knowledge Check Math Grades 6-8, Algebra I,  
Algebra IA, Geometry &  
Foundations 9-12  

May 1-30, 2024 CBT 45 minutes Immediate 

Page 134 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                13 

Assessment Students to Be Tested District Window Mode Testing Time Results Expected 
Math i-Ready Diagnostic #3 Grades K-5 May 13-30, 2024 CBT 90 minutes Immediate 

 

Page 135 of 344

DRAFT



2023–24 Uniform Statewide Assessment Calendar 

Rule 6A-1.094224, F.A.C. 
Form ARM 001 
Effective September 2022 
Updated September19, 2023                14 

6. Estimates of Total Testing Time by Grade Level  
Estimates of average time for administering state-required and district-required assessments (listed in Sections 3 and 5 above) by grade level. Subject-based assessments should 
be included with the grade level to which they are most likely to be administered (e.g., Biology 1 with grade 9). 

Grade 
Level 

Statewide Assessments1 District Assessments1 
Approximate Total 

Testing Time (In Minutes) Range of Minutes 
Median 

Number of 
Minutes 

% Net 
Instructional 

Time2 

Range of 
Minutes 

Median 
Number of 

Minutes 

% Net 
Instructional 

Time2 
VPK 30–60 45 0.10% 0 0  30 - 60 

K 90–150 120 0.28% 270 270 .62% 360 - 420 
1 95–150 122.5 0.28% 270 270 .62% 360 - 420 
2 105–150 127.5 0.30% 270 270 .62% 375 - 420 
3 560 560 1.30% 270 270 .62% 830 
4 680 680 1.26% 270 270 .50% 950 
5 840 840 1.56% 390 390 .72% 1,230 

1 In accordance with Senate Bill 2524 § 45 (Chapter 2022-154, § 45, Laws of Florida), the Department must collect from each school district, by grade level, the range and median number of minutes per school year, 
including as a percentage of net instructional time, students in prekindergarten through grade 5 spend on district-required assessments and coordinated screening and progress monitoring and state-required 
assessments and coordinated screening and progress monitoring. 
2 The percent net instructional time is based on 43,200 instructional minutes per school year for VPK through grade 3 and on 54,000 instructional minutes per school year for grades 4 through 5, per s. 1011.61, F.S. 
 
Grade 
Level 

Statewide 
Assessments 

District 
Assessments 

Approximate Total Testing 
Time (In Minutes)** 

6 740 90 830 
7 900 90 990 
8 900 350 1,250 
9 740 450 1,190 

10 580 270 850 
11 294 240 534 
12 160 90 250 

1 The amount of time for grade 11 statewide assessments will depend on whether a district selects ACT or SAT. If ACT, use 335 minutes (160 + 175) for the grade 11 Statewide Assessments cell. If SAT, use 294 minutes 
(160 + 134) for the grade 11 Statewide Assessments cell. 

Page 136 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 -  Proclamation #24-06 to Establish School Psychologist Week November 6-10, 2023

Description
November 6-10,2023 is National School Psychology Week (NSPW).  School psychologists are uniquely qualified members of
school teams that support students’ ability to learn and teachers’ ability to teach. . School psychologists partner with families,
teachers, school administrators, and other professionals to create safe, healthy, and supportive learning environments that
strengthen connections between home, school, and the community. They apply expertise in mental health, learning, and behavior
to help children and youth succeed socially, behaviorally, emotionally, and academically, through the identification of
appropriate, evidence-based educational, mental health, and behavioral health services for all children, youth, and families. This
year’s NSPW theme is "Together We Grow."  We want to recognize the contributions of school psychologists in supporting the
academic success of our students.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County recognized and appreciated the contributions of school psychologists.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support the work of school psychologists and the provision of their
services that assist students and families in promoting academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
The school board will proclaim November 6-10, 2023 School Psychologist Week and recognize the contributions of school
psychologists to our academic community.

Contact
Laura Fogarty: laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6513

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

School Psychologist Proclamation 2023 .pdf

Page 137 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-psychologist-proclamation-2023-1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 24-06

National School Psychology Week
November 6-10, 2023

Whereas, School Psychologists in Clay County serve as vital members of the educational
team, playing a central role in creating a positive environment at schools; and

Whereas, Children and youth learn best when they are healthy, supported, and receive an
education that enables them to thrive academically, socially, and emotionally; and

Whereas, Schools can more effectively ensure that all students are able to learn when they
meet the needs of the whole child and provide integrated, multi-tiered supports; and

Whereas, Children’s mental health is directly linked to their learning and development, and the
learning environment provides an optimal context to promote good mental health through
connectedness within the school and community; and

Whereas, Sound psychological principles are integral to instruction and learning, school
safety, social and emotional development, prevention, early intervention, and support of
culturally diverse student populations; and

Whereas, School Psychologists in Clay County are specially trained to foster and deliver, in
the school and community, a continuum of mental health services and academic supports
that lower barriers to teaching and learning; and

Whereas, School Psychologists in Clay County help children thrive by nurturing their
individual strengths across both personal and academic endeavors; and

Whereas, School Psychologists in Clay County are trained to assess student and
school-based barriers to learning and individual strengths, utilize data-based
decision-making, implement research-driven prevention and intervention strategies, and
evaluate outcomes and improve accountability; and

Page 138 of 344

DRAFT



Whereas, Clay County District Schools should recognize the vital role that School
Psychologists play in the personal and academic development of our District’s children,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does
hereby recognize the importance and hard work of our district’s school psychologists, and
extend greetings and best wishes to all observing November 6-10 2023 as National
School Psychology Week.

ATTEST:

_____________________________ __________________________
David Broskie School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Page 139 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Clay County District Schools & the University of Central Florida

Description
Clay County District Schools will enter into agreement with the University of Central Florida to provide internship opportunities
for graduate level social work students.  Students will obtain necessary background checks and be supervised by school social
workers.  This agreement furthers Clay County District School's collaboration with institutions of higher education, promotes
future employment with the district, and increases the overall reach of social workers in our district.

Gap Analysis
Social work interns will increase and expand current school social workers' abilities to reach families and connect appropriate
services.  

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools has been able to employ previous social work interns into open positions upon graduation.  

Expected Outcomes
School Board will approve agreement.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Heather McDonald, Supervisor of Mental Health and Wellness heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net 904-336-6900

Financial Impact
N/A No Cost

Review Comments

Attachments

Clay County District Schools & the University of Central Florida SW Internship Agreement.pdf

Page 140 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-county-district-schools-the-university-of-central-florida-sw-internship-agreement.pdf


Page 141 of 344

DRAFT



Page 142 of 344

DRAFT



Page 143 of 344

DRAFT



Page 144 of 344

DRAFT



Page 145 of 344

DRAFT



Page 146 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2023-2024 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

11.02.23 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.xlsx.pdf

Page 147 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/110223-23-24-allocation-summaryxlsx.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS    2023-2024 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, November 2, 2023

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2023-2024 ACTIONS

General Funds

ESE - 9005 -1.0 Staffing Specialist, 11 Month Enrollment & program needs ($55,708) ($18,584) ($74,292)

ESE - 9005 1.0 Staffing Specialist, 10 Month Enrollment & program needs $50,550 $16,863 $67,413

TOTAL: ($5,158) ($1,721) ($6,879)

Federal Funds (IDEA - 420/4100.4)

ESE - 9005 -1.0 Teacher Applied Technology/Handicapped, 10 month Enrollment & program needs ($48,450) ($16,163) ($64,613)

ESE - 9005 1.0 Teacher Applied Technology/Handicapped, 11 month Enrollment & program needs $53,394 $17,812 $71,206

TOTAL: $4,944 $1,649 $6,593

Pending Board Approval 11/02/2023

Page 148 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Monthly Financial Reports for September, 2023

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending September 30, 2023.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Strategy 2:  Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize
available resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.  Promote fiscal
transparency and communication.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
September, 2023.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

August 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

July 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

September 2023 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

September 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent from $50K to $100K.pdf

Page 149 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/august-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-from-50k-to-100k.pdf


Page 150 of 344

DRAFT



Page 151 of 344

DRAFT



Page 152 of 344

DRAFT



Page 153 of 344

DRAFT



Page 154 of 344

DRAFT



Page 155 of 344

DRAFT



Page 156 of 344

DRAFT



Page 157 of 344

DRAFT



Page 158 of 344

DRAFT



Page 159 of 344

DRAFT



Page 160 of 344

DRAFT



Page 161 of 344

DRAFT



Page 162 of 344

DRAFT



Page 163 of 344

DRAFT



Page 164 of 344

DRAFT



Page 165 of 344

DRAFT



Page 166 of 344

DRAFT



Page 167 of 344

DRAFT



Page 168 of 344

DRAFT



Page 169 of 344

DRAFT



Page 170 of 344

DRAFT



Page 171 of 344

DRAFT



Page 172 of 344

DRAFT



Page 173 of 344

DRAFT



Page 174 of 344

DRAFT



Page 175 of 344

DRAFT



Page 176 of 344

DRAFT



Page 177 of 344

DRAFT



Page 178 of 344

DRAFT



Page 179 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Budget Amendment Report for September 30, 2023

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for  September 2023 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

23-24 Budget Amendments September 2023.pdf

Page 180 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-budget-amendments-september-2023.pdf


Page 181 of 344

DRAFT



Page 182 of 344

DRAFT



Page 183 of 344

DRAFT



Page 184 of 344

DRAFT



Page 185 of 344

DRAFT



Page 186 of 344

DRAFT



Page 187 of 344

DRAFT



Page 188 of 344

DRAFT



Page 189 of 344

DRAFT



Page 190 of 344

DRAFT



Page 191 of 344

DRAFT



Page 192 of 344

DRAFT



Page 193 of 344

DRAFT



Page 194 of 344

DRAFT



Page 195 of 344

DRAFT



Page 196 of 344

DRAFT



Page 197 of 344

DRAFT



Page 198 of 344

DRAFT



Page 199 of 344

DRAFT



Page 200 of 344

DRAFT



Page 201 of 344

DRAFT



Page 202 of 344

DRAFT



Page 203 of 344

DRAFT



Page 204 of 344

DRAFT



Page 205 of 344

DRAFT



Page 206 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT OCTOBER, 2023

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of October, 2023.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
 
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - October, 2023 as submitted

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT OCTOBER, 2023.pdf

Page 207 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-october-2023.pdf


Page 208 of 344

DRAFT



Page 209 of 344

DRAFT



Page 210 of 344

DRAFT



Page 211 of 344

DRAFT



Page 212 of 344

DRAFT



Page 213 of 344

DRAFT



Page 214 of 344

DRAFT



Page 215 of 344

DRAFT



Page 216 of 344

DRAFT



Page 217 of 344

DRAFT



Page 218 of 344

DRAFT



Page 219 of 344

DRAFT



Page 220 of 344

DRAFT



Page 221 of 344

DRAFT



Page 222 of 344

DRAFT



Page 223 of 344

DRAFT



Page 224 of 344

DRAFT



Page 225 of 344

DRAFT



Page 226 of 344

DRAFT



Page 227 of 344

DRAFT



Page 228 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Motor oil, Transmission and Other Automotive Fluids – County Wide Bid #22-TR-92:  Contract Period is January 1, 2024
through December 31, 2024. The contract period is for one (1) year and is the first of three renewal options. 

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Motor oil, Transmission and Other Automotive Fluids – County Wide Bid #22-TR-92: 

HR Lewis Petroleum Co, PO Box 40763, Jacksonville, FL 32203-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Motor oil, Transmission and Other Automotive Fluids – County Wide Bid #22-TR-92: The total estimated expenditure for the
one (1) year contract renewal is $55,000.00 from General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 229 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Window Replacement (Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4)

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for replacement of 23 plexiglass window panes with ¼ inch
tempered glass.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of the district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an evironment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $6,214.35. Architect fees, contracted at 8.5%, will increase by $528.22
as a result of this Change Order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 OPJ Window Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Page 230 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-opj-window-replacement.pdf


Page 231 of 344

DRAFT



Page 232 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Purchase Agreement for Sale of Two (2) Portable Classrooms and Two (2) Sets of Ramps and Stairs at Paterson
Elementary School

Description
Relocatable building type 92, Rooms 29 and 30, located at Paterson Elementary School, identified as CI 704 and CI 516,
respectively, and the ramps and stairs associated with the portables have been deemed surplus by resolution and no longer usable
for educational or ancillary purposes, have no commercial value, and should be disposed of by the most economic means.  The
Clay County Board of County Commissioners has agreed to purchase the two (2) portable classrooms for $10.00 each and the
association ramps and stairs for $10,000.00 each, for a total of $20,020.00. The CCBCC is responsible for paying for all of the
costs associated with moving the portables, ramps, and stairs and shall have no cost to the School Board.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in an unnecessary financial burden on the district to dispose of or move the portables.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has approved the sale of surplus portables and ramps and stairs in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the purchase agreement to sell the two (2) portables and the two (2) sets of ramps
and stairs associated with the portables.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the purchase agreement and sale of two (2) portables and two (2) sets of ramps and stairs associated with the portables.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904)336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904)336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Coordinator of Planning and Intergovernmental Affairs, (904)336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$20,020.00 to the School Board for the sale of real property.

Review Comments

Attachments

LOI County Portable Donation 11.2.23.pdf

Purchase Agreement & Resolution for Portable Classrooms & Ramps & Steps 11.2.23.pdf

Resolution & Purchase Agreement for Sale of Portables & Ramps & Steps Contract Review Approval.pdf

Page 233 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/loi-county-portable-donation-11223.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/purchase-agreement-resolution-for-portable-classrooms-ramps-steps-11223.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/resolution-purchase-agreement-for-sale-of-portables-ramps-steps-contract-review-approval.pdf


Page 234 of 344

DRAFT



Page 235 of 344

DRAFT



Page 236 of 344

DRAFT



Page 237 of 344

DRAFT



Page 238 of 344

DRAFT



Page 239 of 344

DRAFT



Page 240 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Interlocal Agreement to Sell Low-Priced Diesel Fuel to the Clay County Board of County Commissioners for Use of Fire
and Rescue Vehicles in the Keystone Heights Area

Description
This agreement between the Clay County Board of County Commissioners (“BCC”) and the Clay County School Board
(“CCSB”) is to allow the BCC to obtain a source of low-priced diesel fuel from the CCSB for fire and rescue vehicles located at
Fire Station Number 23 in the area of Keystone Heights, Florida.

Gap Analysis
The Clay County Board of County Commissioners is in need of a source of low-priced diesel fuel for fire and rescue vehicles
located at Fire Station Number 23 in the area of Keystone Heights, Florida, other than the utilization of privately-owned fuel
stations or county fueling stations in the area.

Previous Outcomes
This agreement is a renewal.  The Clay County School Board agreed to sell diesel fuel to the Board of County Commissioners
from the Keystone Facility for the price per gallon cost plus a 3.45 percent administrative fee charged by and payable to the Clay
County School Board.

Expected Outcomes
The Board of County Commissioners could realize significant savings to the tax payers by purchasing diesel fuel from the Clay
County School Board at the facility.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Interlocal Agreement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Asst. Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Coordinator, Planning and Intergovernmental Relations, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
No cost to the District.

Review Comments

Attachments

Interlocal Agreement CCSB 2023-2024 Diesel Fuel.pdf

Interlocal Agreement for Low-Priced Fuel Contract Review Approval.pdf

Page 241 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-ccsb-2023-2024-diesel-fuel.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-for-low-priced-fuel-contract-review-approval.pdf


Clay County Agreement/Contract No. 2023/2024 -____ 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

AND THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA FOR FY 23/24-FY25/26 

 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this 

______ day of November, 2023 by and between Clay County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Florida (“County”), and the School Board of Clay County, a body corporate and political 

subdivision of the State of Florida (“School Board”). 

RECITALS 

  

 WHEREAS, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, permits local governmental units to make the 

most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis of 

mutual advantage; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County is in need of a source of low-priced diesel fuel for fire and rescue 

vehicles in the area of Keystone Heights, Florida; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School Board maintains diesel fuel pumping facilities near McRae 

Elementary School, 6770 County Road 31SC, in Keystone Heights, Florida (“Facility”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County could realize significant savings to the taxpayers by purchasing 

diesel from the School Board at the Facility; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School Board is willing to sell diesel fuel to the County from the Facility. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual 

covenants set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged and objections to the sufficiency and adequacy of which are hereby waived, the parties 

do hereby agree as follows: 

 

 1. Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, commonly known as the "Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act of 1969", and all applicable portions of the Act are made a part hereof and 

incorporated herein as if set forth in full, including, but not limited to the following specific 

provisions: 

 

 a. All of the privileges and immunities and limitations from liability, exemptions from 

 laws, ordinances and rules, and all pensions and relief, disability, workers' compensation 

 and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents, or employees of the parties 

 hereto when performing their respective functions within their respective territorial limits 

 for their respective agencies, shall apply to the same degree and extent to the performance 

 of such functions and duties of such officers, agents or employees extra-territorially under 

 the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

Page 242 of 344

DRAFT



2 

 

 b. This Agreement does not and shall not be deemed to relieve any of the parties hereto 

 of any of their respective obligations or responsibilities imposed upon them by law except 

 to the extent of the actual and timely performance of those obligations or responsibilities 

 by one or more of the parties to this Agreement, in which case performance provided 

 hereunder may be offered in satisfaction of the obligation or responsibility. 

 

 c. As a condition precedent to its effectiveness, and pursuant to Section 163.01(11), 

 Florida Statutes, this Agreement and any subsequent amendments hereto shall be filed with 

 the Clerk of the Circuit Court of the County. 

 

 2. The School Board agrees to sell diesel fuel to the County from the Facility for Clay 

County Fire and Rescue vehicles. 

 

 3. The price per gallon charged to the County will be the School Board’s per gallon 

cost plus a 3.45 percent administrative fee charged by and payable to the School Board. 

 

 4. Clay County Fire and Rescue personnel assigned to Fire Station No. 23 (“CCFR 

Personnel”) will have 24-hour access to the Facility and will be provided keys or other materials 

or information as may be needed to access the Facility and operate the pumps therein situated. 

 

 5. CCFR Personnel will be responsible for securing/locking access points to the 

Facility and pumps upon their departure from the Facility. Any loss suffered by the School Board 

resulting from the failure of CCFR Personnel to secure the Facility and pumps will be the 

responsibility of the County. 

 

 6. CCFR Personnel who fuel County Fire and Rescue vehicles at the Facility shall 

record each fuel transaction and the exact amount of fuel dispensed during each transaction. On 

the first business day of each month during the term of this Agreement, CCFR Personnel or other 

Clay County personnel as may be designated by the County will submit such transaction record(s) 

or other documentation (“Usage Report”) to the School Board Director of Transportation, which 

shall reflect each fuel transaction and the total amount of fuel dispensed by CCFR Personnel during 

the preceding month. 

 

 7. The School Board shall reconcile the Usage Report against its own records and 

transmit to the County a monthly invoice. The County shall remit payment within forty-five (45) 

days of its receipt of the monthly invoice in accordance with the Local Government Prompt 

Payment Act. 

 

 8. Subject to and within the limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, the County 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the School Board from and against any loss, damage, or 

liability which arises from the negligent or intentional acts of CCFR Personnel in connection with 

performance of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive the sovereign 

immunity protections provided the County pursuant to Florida law. Notwithstanding anything 

stated to the contrary in the Agreement, the County’s obligation to compensate or indemnify is 

limited and shall not exceed the limits set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as it may be 

amended from time to time.  

Page 243 of 344

DRAFT



3 

 

 9. The term of this Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2023, and shall 

remain in effect for a period of three years through September 30, 2026. The Agreement may be 

extended or modified only by written agreement of the parties. Either party may terminate the 

Agreement with or without cause by providing sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other party. 

Such written notice shall be given by certified mail directed to the following addresses: 

 

David Broskie, Superintendent of Schools 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

900 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

Howard Wanamaker, County Manager  

CLAY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

477 Houston Street  

P.O. Box 1366 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

 10. The School Board acknowledges that in the County’s budget for each fiscal year 

during which the term of this Agreement is in effect, a limited amount of funds are appropriated 

and made available for payment under this Agreement. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 

129.07, Florida Statutes, the maximum payment that the County is obligated to make under the 

Agreement from the budget of any fiscal year shall not exceed the appropriation for said fiscal 

year. 

 

 11. The access to, disclosure, non-disclosure, or exemption of records, data, 

documents, and/or materials, associated with this Agreement shall be subject to the applicable 

provisions of the Florida Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), and other applicable 

State or Federal law. The parties shall comply with all requirements of Chapter 119, Florida 

Statutes, to the extent applicable to the records and documents associated with this Agreement that 

are in its possession or under its control. A request to inspect or copy public records relating to the 

Agreement must be made directly to the County. The parties shall retain all records relating to this 

Agreement for a period of at least five (5) years after the Agreement terminates.   

 

IF THE SCHOOL BOARD HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

SCHOOL BOARD’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT (904) 529-3604, publicrecords@claycountygov.com, POST 

OFFICE BOX 1366, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA  32043.  
 

 12. No third party beneficiaries are intended or contemplated under this Agreement, 

and no third party shall be deemed to have rights or remedies arising under this Agreement against 

either of the parties to this Agreement. 

 

 13. The Agreement may only be modified or amended upon mutual written agreement 

Page 244 of 344

DRAFT



4 

 

of the parties.  No oral agreements or representation shall be valid or binding upon either party.   

 

14. Each of the parties shall cooperate with one another, shall do and perform such 

actions and things, and shall execute and deliver such agreements, documents and instruments, as 

may be reasonable and necessary to effectuate the purposes and intents of this Agreement. 

 

15. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Florida. Venue for any litigation, mediation, or other action proceeding between the 

parties arising out of this Agreement lies in Clay County, Florida. 

 

 16. In the event either party shall retain an attorney to litigate on its behalf against the 

other party regarding the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement or regarding the rights, 

remedies, or obligations of the parties arising under this Agreement, the party prevailing on the 

majority of its claims, or which successfully defends against a majority of the other party’s claims, 

shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses against the other 

party, including fees, costs, and expenses incurred from the date of referral of the dispute to the 

prevailing party’s attorney through the conclusion of litigation, or incurred in bankruptcy or on 

appeal.  Nothing contained herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity and 

extend either party’s liability beyond the limits established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

 17. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

 18. It is mutually acknowledged and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement 

contains the entire agreement between the County and the School Board with respect to the subject 

matter of this Agreement, and that there are no verbal agreements, representations, warranties or 

other understandings affecting the same. 

 

 19. The parties to this Agreement agree that each party has the option to utilize 

electronic signatures and that the digital signatures of the parties set forth below are intended to 

authenticate this Agreement and have the same force and effect as manual written signatures. Each 

person signing on behalf of the parties to the Agreement represents and warrants that he/she has 

full authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of such party and that the Agreement will 

constitute a legal and binding obligation of such party. 

 

[Signatures appear on the following page.] 

 

  

  

Page 245 of 344

DRAFT



5 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 

and year first above written. 

 

 

      THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,  

      FLORIDA 

 

 

 By:         

  CCSB Chairperson    

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

David Broskie 

Superintendent of Schools  

 

CLAY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the 

 State of Florida   

 

 

     By:        

   Howard Wanamaker 

  County Manager on behalf of the   

       Board of County Commissioners 

 
F:\Contract\Interlocal\ccsb\Diesel Fuel\Interlocal Agreement CCSB 2023-2024 Diesel Fuel.docx 

Page 246 of 344

DRAFT



Page 247 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Resolution and Option Contract Sale Agreement for .16 Acres at Montclair Elementary School

Description
Per Real Property Purchase Sale Agreement and land description set forth in the survey, legal description, and appraisal, attached
hereto, CCDS is seeking to sell approximately .16 acres as a portion of parcel 41-04-26-020279-000-00 located on the
northernmost portion of the Montclair Elementary School parcel, 2398 Moody Road, Orange Park, Florida for $15,000.00
(FIFTEEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS) and no other considerations.  Mr. Peter Johnston lives adjacent to the
property and has plans to improve the property upon purchase.  The purchaser will provide the survey and appraisal for said real
property, at no cost to the School Board, nor shall the School Board incur any cost associated with the sale of said real property. 
The property is determined to be unnecessary for educational purposes and is a financial burden because of the continued
required maintenance.

Gap Analysis
The property will continue to require maintenance, thus, a cost burden to the School Board, public, and stakeholders.

Previous Outcomes
The Board has approved previous sale considerations of school property not in use.

Expected Outcomes
The Board will adopt the resolution allowing staff to move forward with the real property sale to Mr. Peter Johnston.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the resolution and option contract sale agreement to grant authority to dispose a portion of  Montclair Elementary
School, real-property through real estate conveyance to Mr. Peter Johnston for the sum of $15,000.00 (FIFTEEN THOUSAND
AND NO/100 DOLLARS).

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Planning & Intergovernmental Relations, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$15,000.00 to the School Board for the sale of real property.

Review Comments

Attachments

MCE Property Resolution.Option Contract.Survey #1.pdf

MCE Property Resolution.Option Contract.Survey #2.pdf

Resolution & Option Contract for MCE Property Contract Review Approval.pdf

Page 248 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mce-property-resolutionoption-contractsurvey-1_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mce-property-resolutionoption-contractsurvey-2_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/resolution-option-contract-for-mce-property-contract-review-approval.pdf


Page 249 of 344

DRAFT



Page 250 of 344

DRAFT



Page 251 of 344

DRAFT



Page 252 of 344

DRAFT



Page 253 of 344

DRAFT



Page 254 of 344

DRAFT



Page 255 of 344

DRAFT



Page 256 of 344

DRAFT



Page 257 of 344

DRAFT



Page 258 of 344

DRAFT



Page 259 of 344

DRAFT



Page 260 of 344

DRAFT



Page 261 of 344

DRAFT



Page 262 of 344

DRAFT



Page 263 of 344

DRAFT



Page 264 of 344

DRAFT



Page 265 of 344

DRAFT



Page 266 of 344

DRAFT



Page 267 of 344

DRAFT



Page 268 of 344

DRAFT



Page 269 of 344

DRAFT



Page 270 of 344

DRAFT



Page 271 of 344

DRAFT



Page 272 of 344

DRAFT



Page 273 of 344

DRAFT



Page 274 of 344

DRAFT



Page 275 of 344

DRAFT



Page 276 of 344

DRAFT



Page 277 of 344

DRAFT



Page 278 of 344

DRAFT



Page 279 of 344

DRAFT



Page 280 of 344

DRAFT



Page 281 of 344

DRAFT



Page 282 of 344

DRAFT



Page 283 of 344

DRAFT



Page 284 of 344

DRAFT



Page 285 of 344

DRAFT



Page 286 of 344

DRAFT



Page 287 of 344

DRAFT



Page 288 of 344

DRAFT



Page 289 of 344

DRAFT



Page 290 of 344

DRAFT



Page 291 of 344

DRAFT



Page 292 of 344

DRAFT



Page 293 of 344

DRAFT



Page 294 of 344

DRAFT



Page 295 of 344

DRAFT



Page 296 of 344

DRAFT



Page 297 of 344

DRAFT



Page 298 of 344

DRAFT



Page 299 of 344

DRAFT



Page 300 of 344

DRAFT



Page 301 of 344

DRAFT



Page 302 of 344

DRAFT



Page 303 of 344

DRAFT



Page 304 of 344

DRAFT



Page 305 of 344

DRAFT



Page 306 of 344

DRAFT



Page 307 of 344

DRAFT



Page 308 of 344

DRAFT



Page 309 of 344

DRAFT



Page 310 of 344

DRAFT



Page 311 of 344

DRAFT



Page 312 of 344

DRAFT



Page 313 of 344

DRAFT



Page 314 of 344

DRAFT



Page 315 of 344

DRAFT



Page 316 of 344

DRAFT



Page 317 of 344

DRAFT



Page 318 of 344

DRAFT



Page 319 of 344

DRAFT



Page 320 of 344

DRAFT



Page 321 of 344

DRAFT



Page 322 of 344

DRAFT



Page 323 of 344

DRAFT



Page 324 of 344

DRAFT



Page 325 of 344

DRAFT



Page 326 of 344

DRAFT



Page 327 of 344

DRAFT



Page 328 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 11.2.23

Page 329 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-11223.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Charles Perry Partners, Inc. General Contractor $300,000,000.00 November 30, 2024 

E. Vaughan Rivers, Inc. General Contractor $25,000,000.00 November 30, 2024 

Scorpio General Contractor $70,000,000.00 November 30, 2024 

Brogden Builders, LLC Building Contractor  $2,000,000.00 November 30, 2024 

 

Page 330 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Substantial Completion of Lakeside Junior High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has
reached Substantial Completion on September 27, 2023 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Substantial Completion LSJ Restroom Renovation.pdf

Page 331 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/substantial-completion-lsj-restroom-renovation.pdf


Page 332 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Final Completion of Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Establish a Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF)
and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has reached Final
Completion on August 25, 2023 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Final Completion OPJ Restroom Renovation.pdf

Page 333 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/final-completion-opj-restroom-renovation.pdf


Page 334 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights, Notification and Student
Welfare)

Description
Current Parental Rights policy has been revised and updated to bring in accordance with Florida Legislative changes from this
legislative session. These proposed revisions and updates will bring current policy into conformity with Florida law.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to advertise the proposed adoption and public hearing of the proposed rule
which will then lead to the consideration of passage of the Rule by the School Board after the appropriate public hearing.  The
Policy/Rule will be advertised, submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for public hearing and consideration in the
manner contemplated by the Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
The School Board Attorney and Legal Department recommends approving revisions and updates, as advertised, to conform with
current Florida Law governing parental rights and notification in education.

Contact
Jeremiah Blocker, Esq., School Board Attorney
John Steinmetz, Esq., Assistant School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Legal Adv Revisions to SB Policy 1.15 Parental Rights.pdf

2023.08.28 Section 1.15 proposed changes.pdf

Page 335 of 344

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-revisions-to-sb-policy-115-parental-rights.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20230828-section-115-proposed-changes.pdf


 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights, Notification and Student Welfare Policy). 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  SB  Policy  1.15  is 
 available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District 
 Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via 
 the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board 
 Agendas  -  September  7,  2023.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar, 
 numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be  necessary  to  reflect  the  intention  of  such 
 Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  School  Board  Policy  1.15  (Parental 
 Rights,  Notification  and  Student  Welfare  Policy)  under  sections  120.54,  1001.31,  and  1001.32  of  the  Florida 
 Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  proposed  revisions  to  School  Board  Policy  1.15  following 
 a  public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  November  2,  2023,  during  the  course  of 
 the  Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the  Boardroom  at  the  Teacher 
 In-service Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 336 of 344

DRAFT



1.15 PARENTAL RIGHTS, NOTIFICATION, AND STUDENT WELFARE 
 

 

A. As required by Florida Statutes 1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.01 

through 1014.06, the Board adopts this policy titled, Parental Rights and Student 

Welfare. 

 

B. A. All parental rights are reserved to the parent of a minor child in 

this state without obstruction or interference from the School Board or any of its 

agents, employees, or volunteers. Such parental rights are enumerated in Florida 

Statutes 1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.04 1014.01 through 1014.06. Those parental 

rights listed in 1014.04 1014.01 through 1014.06 include, but are not limited to, all 

of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a student in Clay 

District Schools: 
 
 
 

child. 

1. The right to direct the education and care of his or her minor 

 

2. The right to direct the upbringing and the moral or religious 

training of his or her minor child. 
 

 

3. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(2)(b) and (6), to apply to enroll 

his or her minor child in a public school or, as an alternative to public education, a 

private school, including a religious school, a home education program, or other 

available options, as authorized by law. 
 

 

4. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(13), to access and review all 

school records relating to his or her minor child. 
 

 

5. The right to make health care decisions for his or her minor child, 

unless otherwise prohibited by law. 
 

 

6. The right to access and review all medical records of his or her 

minor child, unless prohibited by law or if the parent is the subject of an investigation 

of a crime committed against the minor child and a law enforcement agency or 

official requests that the information not be released. 
 

 

7. The right to consent in writing before a biometric scan of his or 

her minor child is made, shared, or stored. 
 

 

8. The right to consent in writing before any record of his or her 

minor child’s blood or deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) is created, stored, or shared, 

except as required by general law or authorized pursuant to a court order. 
 

 Page 337 of 344

DRAFT



9. The right to consent in writing before the state or any of its 

political subdivisions makes a video or voice recording of his or her minor 

child unless such recording is made during or as part of a court proceeding or is 

made as part of a forensic interview in a criminal or Department of Children and 

Families investigation or is to be used solely for the following purposes: 
 

 

(a) A safety demonstration, including the maintenance of 

order and discipline in the common areas of a school or on student transportation 

vehicles; 
 

 

(b) A purpose related to a legitimate academic or 

extracurricular activity; 
 

 

(c) A purpose related to regular classroom instructions; 
 

 

(d) Security or surveillance of buildings or grounds; or 
 

 

(e) A photo identification card. 
 

 

10. The right to be notified promptly if an employee of the state, any 

of its political subdivisions, any other governmental entity, or any other institution 

suspects that a criminal offense has been committed against his or her minor child, 

unless the incident has first been reported to law enforcement or the Department of 

Children and Families and notifying the parent would impede the investigation. 
 

 

C. B. The parental rights listed in F.S.1001.42(8)(c)1 through 

1001.42(8)(c)7 as set forth in Laws of Florida 2022-22 include, but are not 

limited to, all of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a 

student in Clay District Schools: 
 
 
 

1. School District personnel shall notify a student’s parent if there 

is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the student’s 

mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to 

provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student. 
 

 

2. School District personnel are required to encourage a student to 

discuss issues relating to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate 

discussion of the issue with the parent. 
 

 

3. School district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental 

notification of and involvement in critical decisions affecting a student’s mental, 

emotional, or physical health or well-being. 
Page 338 of 344

DRAFT



 

4. School District Policies, Procedures and Student support forms 

may not prohibit school district personnel from notifying a parent about his or her 

student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related 

services or monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student 

to withhold from a parent such information. 
 

 

5. The Superintendent of Schools, by and through his designated 

administrators, shall draft procedures to implement the forgoing policies (1 through 

4) by reinforcing the fundamental rights of parents to make decisions regarding the 

up-bringing and control of their children. 
 

 

6. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit School District personnel from adopting 

procedures that permit school personnel to withhold such information from a parent 

if a reasonably prudent person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, 

abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida Statutes. 
 

 

7. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit, or be construed to prohibit, parents from 

accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or 

used by the school district, as required by s. 1002.22(2). 
 

 

8. Classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on 

sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in prekindergarten kindergarten 

through grade 8, except when required by Fl. Stat. 1003.42(2)(n)(3), and 1003.46. 

If such instruction is provided in grades 9-12, the instruction must be 3 or in a 

manner that is not age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students 

in accordance with state standards. 
 

 

9. Student support services training developed or provided by a 

school district to school district personnel must adhere to student services guidelines, 

standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education. 
 

 

10. At the beginning of the school year, the school district shall 

notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their student’s school and the 

option to withhold consent or decline any specific service. Parental consent to a 

health care service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student’s 

educational or health records or to be notified about a change in his or her student’s 

services or monitoring as provided by this paragraph. 

Page 339 of 344

DRAFT



11.  Before administering  a  student  well-being  questionnaire  or 

health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3, the school district 

must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the 

permission of the parent to proceed with the administration of the questioning. 
 

 

12. The Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, shall adopt 

procedures for a parent to notify the principal, or his or her designee, regarding 

concerns about the implementation of any part of this entire Policy or its associated 

procedures at his or her student’s school and the process for resolving those concerns 

within 7 calendar days after notification by the parent. 
 

 

a. At a minimum, the procedures must require that within 30 days 

after notification by the parent that the concern remains unresolved, the school 

district must either resolve the concern or provide a statement of the reasons for not 

resolving the concern. 
 
 
 

either: 

b. If a concern is not resolved by the school district, a parent may 

 

(1) Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a 

special magistrate who is a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and who 

has at least 5 years’ experience in administrative law. 
 

 

The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the 

dispute over the school district policy or procedure/practice, consider information 

provided by the school district, and render a recommended decision for resolution 

to the State Board of Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the 

parent. 
 

 

The State Board of Education must approve or reject the 

recommended decision at its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 

calendar days and no more than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is 

transmitted. 
 
 
 

school district. 

The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the 

 

(2) Bring a legal action against the School Board of Clay 

County, Florida to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school district 

procedure/practice violates this Policy and seek injunctive relief. 

Page 340 of 344

DRAFT



The court may award damages and shall award reasonable 

attorney fees and court costs to a parent who receives declaratory or injunctive relief. 

 

c. Each school district shall adopt policies to notify parents of the 

procedures required under this subparagraph.  
 

 

d. Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall be construed to 

abridge or alter rights of action or remedies in equity already existing under the 

common law or general law. 
 

 

D. At a minimum, the Superintendent is directed to provide notice 

directly to parents of students enrolled in the District of the substantive content of 

this policy at least annually at the beginning of the school year, and within a 

reasonable period of time after any substantive change in this policy. 

E. C. As used in this policy, the term “Parent” shall be defined to 

include a natural or adopted parent, step-parent, legal guardian, state agency 

appointed as a child’s guardian or any other individual or entity designated by 

applicable law as “the parent”. means a person who has legal custody of a minor 

child, as a natural or adoptive parent, or a legal guardian. 
 

 

F. Nothing contained in this Policy or in procedures drafted to implement 

this Policy, shall require any School District personnel to inform a parent of 

communications between a student and school personnel if it is determined: 
 

 

1. That the student, after being encouraged to discuss issues relating 

to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue 

with the parent, indicates an unwillingness or outright refusal to enter into discussion 

with his/her parents concerning those matters about which the student communicated 

with School District personnel, and 
 

 

2. That there is no change in the student’s services or monitoring 

related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the 

school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the 

student, or 
 

 

3. Information has been disclosed to the School District personnel 

by the student or other individual(s) which would cause a reasonably prudent person 

to believe that disclosure of the communicated information to a parent would result 

in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida 

Statutes. 

Page 341 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 342 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 343 of 344

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 344 of 344

DRAFT


